
 
Public Hearing Agenda 

Tuesday, February 25, 2025 - 7:00 PM 
 
  

I.   Call To Order 
 
II.  Opening Remarks by Chairwoman 
 
III.  Approval of Agenda 
 
IV.  Approval of Minutes: 
 

• Work Session: February 18, 2025 
• Special Called Meeting 11:00 a.m.: February 18, 2025 
• Informal Business Discussion: February 18, 2025 
• Executive Session: February 18, 2025 
• Business Session: February 18, 2025 
• Informal Presentation 3:00 p.m.: February 18, 2025 

 
V.  Announcements: 
 

• Special Presentation: Gwinnett Youth Commission Minute 
        
 
  



Public Hearing Agenda 
Tuesday, February 25, 2025 - 7:00 PM 
Page 2 
 
VI.  Public Hearing - New Business 
 
 1.  Law Department/Michael P. Ludwiczak 
 

2025-0242 Approval/authorization of a Resolution abandoning a section of right 
of way used as a public road known as Bermuda Road, within Land Lot 60 of the 
6th Land District of Gwinnett County, Georgia. Subject to approval as to form by 
the Law Department. 

 
2.  Transportation/Lewis Cooksey 

 
2025-0179 Approval to incorporate Ashly Pines Phase 5, Beechwood Estates, 
Everson Road, Mills Farm, and Quinn Ridge into the Gwinnett County 
Streetlighting Program. Subject to approval as to form by the Law Department. 
(Recommendation: Approval) 

 
3.  Special Use Permits 

 
2025-0205 SUP2025-00001, Applicant: John G. McKee; Owner: Hewatt Road 
JGM, LLC; Tax Parcel No. R6053 004B; 2121 Hewatt Road; Special Use Permit in 
an M-1 Zoning District for a Vehicle Repair, Service, and Body Work 
Establishment; 0.97 acres; District 2/Ku [Planning Department Recommendation: 
Deny] [Planning Commission Recommendation: Deny] 
 

 4.  Rezonings 
 

2025-0206 REZ2025-00003, Applicant: Timothy A. Shumaker c/o LJA 
Engineering; Owner: Timothy A. Shumaker; Rezoning of Tax Parcel No. R5099 
023; 1180 Temple Johnson Road; R-100 to R-60 for a Single-Family Detached 
Subdivision; 19.84 acres; District 3/Watkins [Planning Department 
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions] [Planning Commission 
Recommendation: Approve with Conditions] 

 
VII.  New Business 
 
 1.  Planning & Development/Matt Dickison 
 

2025-0207 Ratification of Plat approvals for January 1, 2025 through January 
31, 2025. (Recommendation: Approval) 
 

VIII.  Comments from Audience 
 
IX.  Adjournment 
 



M E M O R A N D U M 
 
To: Chairwoman Hendrickson  

District 1 Commissioner Carden  
District 2 Commissioner Ku 

 District 3 Commissioner Watkins  
 District 4 Commissioner Holtkamp 
 
From: Ashia Gallo, Communications Department 
 
The following item(s) will be on the agenda for the BOC public hearing on February 25, 2025, under 
the item of business announcements as a resolution of recognition, award, etc., as indicated: 

 
1) Special Presentation: Gwinnett Youth Commission Minute  

Requested by: Muriam Nafees, Gwinnett Community Outreach Director 
Attendee(s): Ayanfe Anjoorin, Peachtree Ridge High School, 2024 – 2025 Gwinnett Youth 
Commissioners 
Presented by: Ayanfe Anjoorin, Peachtree Ridge High School, 2024 – 2025 Gwinnett Youth 
Commissioners 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

cc: Glenn Stephens  Betrand Williams 
Maria Woods               Arteen Patterson 
Joe Sorenson                Hunter Coleman 
Heather Sawyer   Neshanta Banks 
Kimberly Banner                        Katie Gill 
Tina King   Jeanie Donaldson 
Carli Primavera    
Lauren Gamel    
Tammy Gibson 



      

 

 

   

    
 

 

   

   

 

   

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

    

  

Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners Agenda Request 
GCID # Group With GCID #: 

Grants Public Hearing 

Department: Date Submitted: 

Working Session: Business Session: Public Hearing: 

Submitted By: Multiple Depts? 

Agenda Type 

Item of Business: Locked by Purchasing 

Authorization: 

Financial Action 

County Clerk Use Only 

Attachments 

Chairwoman's Signature? 

Staff Recommendation 

Department Head 

Attorney 

Agenda Purpose Only 

Director's Initials 

Finance 
Comments 

Working Session 

Motion 

PH was Held? 

Action 

2nd by 

Tabled Vote 

FinDir's Initials 

Budgeted Fund Name Current Balance Requested Allocation 

Budget Adjust Grand Jury 

BAC Action: 

20250242 ✔

Law Department 02/13/2025

Jenny Carter

Approval/authorization

Justification Memorandum, Maps, and Resolution

mpludwiczak (2/20/2025)

jennyscarter (2/20/2025)

*No budget impact.

Public Hearing

No Action Taken

No

of a Resolution abandoning a section of right of way used as a public road known as Bermuda Road, within Land Lot 60 of the 6th Land District 
of Gwinnett County, Georgia. Subject to approval as to form by the Law Department.

Yes

raroyal (2/20/2025)

bjalexzulian 
(2/20/2025)

N/A * N/A

02/25/2025





LAKE LUCERNE RD

FIV
E F

OR
KS

 TR
ICK

UM
 RD

W PARK PLACE BLVD

STONE MOUNTAIN

HWY

STONE MOUNTAIN HWY

PO
UN

DS
 RD

ROCKBRIDGE RD

BERMUDARD

BERMUDARD

BERMUDA
RD

BROWNLEE RD

STONE DR

N D
ES

HO
NG

 RD

PU
CK

ET
TS

 DRROCKBRIDGE RD

BERMUDARD

ROCKBRIDGE RD

E PARK
PLACE
BLVD

ANNISTOWNRD

ANNISTOWN RD

BERMUDA

RD

E PARK PLACE BLVD

22 ¬«10
¬«10

          Proposed Abandonment and Disposition
          Bermuda Road Right of Way
Commission District

1
2
3
4

^̀

^̀

DeKalb County



R/WR/W

6060 0066060 006

6060 0806060 080

6060 0206060 020

6060 0536060 053

6060 0746060 074

6060 0056060 005

6060 0916060 091

6060 0766060 076

6060 0356060 035

6060 0046060 004

6061 0236061 023

6060 0376060 037

R A M PR A M P

BB EE RR MM UU DD AA RR DD
WW

PP AA RR KK
PP LL AA CC EE

BB LL VV DD

S T O N E  M O U N T A I N  H W YS T O N E  M O U N T A I N  H W YSS MM HH EE XX RR PP WW PP PP RR AA MM PP

SS MM HH OO NN RR PP WW PP PP RR AA MM PP

N E T H E R W O R L D  W A Y

N E T H E R W O R L D  W A Y

Gwinnett County GIS
Proposed Abandonment and Disposition

Bermuda Road Right of Way² 0 200 400 600 800100
Feet

Proposed Abandonment 

DeKalb CountyDeKalb County



GCID: 2025-0242 

Page 1 of 3 

 
GWINNETT COUNTY  

 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
LAWRENCEVILLE, GEORGIA 

 
RESOLUTION ENTITLED: A RESOLUTION ABANDONING A SECTION OF RIGHT OF WAY USED AS 
A PUBLIC ROAD KNOWN AS BERMUDA ROAD, WITHIN LAND LOT 60 OF THE 6TH LAND DISTRICT 
OF GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA  

 
ADOPTION DATE:  FEBRUARY 25, 2025 
 

At the regular meeting of the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners 
held in the Gwinnett Justice and Administration Center, Auditorium, 75 Langley 
Drive, Lawrenceville, Georgia. 
 
 

Name Present Vote 
Nicole L. Hendrickson, Chairwoman   
Kirkland D. Carden, District I   
Ben Ku, District 2   
Jasper Watkins III, District 3   
Matthew Holtkamp, District 4   

 
 

On motion of Commissioner __________ which carried by a ____ vote, the 
Resolution entitled, A RESOLUTION ABANDONING A SECTION OF RIGHT OF WAY USED AS A 
PUBLIC ROAD KNOWN AS BERMUDA ROAD, WITHIN LAND LOT 60 OF THE 6TH LAND DISTRICT OF 
GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA, as set forth below, is hereby adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, by resolution dated March 26, 2024, the Gwinnett County 
Board of Commissioners approved an intergovernmental economic development 
contract with the Development Authority of Gwinnett County with respect to the 
transfer, development and operation of the former Stone Mountain Tennis Center 
property (the “Property”); and 

 
WHEREAS, said resolution further approved and authorized a purchase 

and sale agreement between the Development Authority of Gwinnett County and 
Fuqua Acquisitions II, LLC related to the sale, development and operation of the 
Property; and  

 
WHEREAS, said purchase and sale agreement contemplates the 

abandonment by Gwinnett County of a portion of Bermuda Road; and 



GCID: 2025-0242 

Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, that portion of Bermuda Road to be abandoned consists of 
2.207 acres, more or less, located in Land Lot 60, 6th District, Gwinnett County, 
Georgia, and is more particularly described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference (the “Abandoned Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the Development Authority of Gwinnett County, CK Stone 
Mountain Parking Lot, LLC, and CK Spacemax Stone Mountain, LLC are the 
owners of the land that abuts the Abandoned Property to whom said property 
would revert upon abandonment; and 

 
WHEREAS, after due consideration, it appears to be in the best interest of 

all concerned as well as in the interest of the public and of Gwinnett County, 
Georgia, to abandon and release the Abandoned Property. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Gwinnett County Board of 

Commissioners, after a duly advertised public hearing, that the Abandoned 
Property is hereby abandoned. 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is made solely to release the Abandoned Property 
from any claim by Gwinnett County, Georgia, for use as a public road. Nothing 
herein is intended to interfere with any existing easements, claims of other 
parties, or existing utilities affecting the Abandoned Property, whether recorded 
or not, whether known or unknown. 
  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chairwoman of the Board of 
Commissioners of Gwinnett County, Georgia, be, and is hereby authorized and 
directed to execute, deliver and accept, as the case may be, any and all 
documents and agreements necessary to complete said abandonment, including, 
without limitation, any quitclaim deeds and other instruments and agreements 
necessary to convey title to the Abandoned Property. 

 
     GWINNETT COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

 
BY:  _____________________________________  

              NICOLE L. HENDRICKSON, CHAIRWOMAN 
ATTEST: 
 
BY:  ___________________________    (SEAL) 
         TINA M. KING, COUNTY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
BY:  ___________________________ 
         DEPUTY COUNTY ATTORNEY 



GCID: 2025-0242 

Page 3 of 3 

Exhibit “A” 
 

Legal Description 
 
All that tract or parcel of land lying and being in Land Lot 60 of the 6th District, 
Gwinnett County, Georgia, and being more particularly described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a point located at the intersection of the Westerly right-of-way line 
of West Park Place Boulevard (variable right-of-way) and the Northerly right-of-
way line of Bermuda Road (100-foot right-of-way), said point being the TRUE 
POINT OF BEGINNING; Thence along said right-of-way line of West Park Place 
Boulevard following along a curve to the left having an arc length of 152.84 feet, 
with a radius of 1046.45 feet, being subtended by a chord bearing of South 08 
degrees 50 minutes 30 seconds East, for a distance of 152.71 feet to a point 
located on the Southerly right-of-way line of Bermuda Road; Thence departing 
said right-of-way line of West Park Place Boulevard following along a curve to the 
left having an arc length of 39.73 feet, with a radius of 20.00 feet, being 
subtended by a chord bearing of North 73 degrees 24 minutes 15 seconds West, 
for a distance of 33.51 feet to a point; Thence along a curve to the left having an 
arc length of 389.66 feet, with a radius of 2390.30 feet, being subtended by a 
chord bearing of South 45 degrees 01 minutes 38 seconds West, for a distance 
of 389.23 feet to a point; Thence South 40 degrees 21 minutes 28 seconds West, 
a distance of 112.13 feet to a point; Thence South 40 degrees 21 minutes 28 
seconds West, a distance of 356.34 feet to a point; Thence South 40 degrees 34 
minutes 26 seconds West, a distance of 27.90 feet to a point; Thence departing 
the Southerly right-of-way line of Bermuda Road North 49 degrees 25 minutes 34 
seconds West, a distance of 102.21 feet to a 1/2-inch rebar found located on the 
Northerly right-of-way line of Bermuda Road; Thence along said right-of-way line 
North 40 degrees 30 minutes 20 seconds East, a distance of 426.08 feet to a 
point; Thence North 42 degrees 00 minutes 08 seconds East, a distance of 
205.95 feet to a point; Thence North 45 degrees 44 minutes 41 seconds East, a 
distance of 195.75 feet to a point; Thence North 48 degrees 16 minutes 18 
seconds East, a distance of 172.01 feet to a point, said point being the TRUE 
POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Said tract of land contains 2.207 Acres. 

 
 



      

 

 

   

    
 

 

   

   

 

   

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

    

  

Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners Agenda Request 
GCID # Group With GCID #: 

Grants Public Hearing 

Department: Date Submitted: 

Working Session: Business Session: Public Hearing: 

Submitted By: Multiple Depts? 

Agenda Type 

Item of Business: Locked by Purchasing 

Authorization: 

Financial Action 

County Clerk Use Only 

Attachments 

Chairwoman's Signature? 

Staff Recommendation 

Department Head 

Attorney 

Agenda Purpose Only 

Director's Initials 

Finance 
Comments 

Working Session 

Motion 

PH was Held? 

Action 

2nd by 

Tabled Vote 

FinDir's Initials 

Budgeted Fund Name Current Balance Requested Allocation 

Budget Adjust Grand Jury 

BAC Action: 

20250179 ✔20240981

Transportation 01/29/2025

srajeev No

Approval

Justification Letter, Resolution, Layout

Approval

lcooksey (1/30/2025)

tllettsome (2/18/2025)

*Amount available in Street Lighting for Pedestrians project. For FY2025, $99,433 is allocated.  
**Upon approval, adjust $27,435 in revenue and appropriations as necessary.  

✔

Public Hearing

No Action Taken

No

to incorporate Ashly Pines Phase 5, Beechwood Estates, Everson Road, Mills Farm, and Quinn Ridge into the Gwinnett County Streetlighting 
Program. Subject to approval as to form by the Law Department.

Yes

raroyal (2/12/2025)

bjalexzulian 
(2/14/2025)

✔

Yes

No

2017 SPLOST

Street Lighting

*

**

$99,433

$27,435

02/25/2025





BRACKENWOOD

DRIVE

ROCMAR

CHURCH

CIRCLE

RIDGELY  COURT

DRIVE

CHANDLER POINT

LINWOOD

WAY

DRIVE

BETHANY

W
ILLOW

MEADE

ROAD

264

BERY
W

ILS
ON

E

COURT

BERYTON

ESOM

DRIVE

HOLLAND

OCTOBER DRIVE

FRYEBURG LANE

MOUNT

ROAD

RIDGE

SPRING

CIRCLE

QUINBERY

DRIVE

TRENTON

PAULOWNIA

MOUNTBERY

BERYTON PLACE

BE
RY

TO
N 

PL
AC

E

ETNA

DRIVE

SEPTEMBER

MENLOE

ROAD

TRENTON

DRIVE

BETHANY

WILLOWMEADE

264

DRIVE

DRIVE

SPRING

ARDEN

CLOUDLAND DRIVE

PLACE

DRIVE

CHURCH

264

GARNET WAY

LINWOOD  WAY

HOLLAND

264

LINWOOD

FRYEBURG PLACE

MOUNTBERY

264

264

VI
EW

MO
NT

BETHANY
BETHANY

PL
AC

E
DRIVE

BETHANY

RIDGE

BETHANY

DRIVE

DRIVE

ROAD

EVERSON

KITTERY DRIVE

ROAD

BETHANY MANOR DRIVE

DRIVE

PAULOWNIA

DRIVE

DRIVE

BRACKENWOOD DRIVE

DRIVE

BETHANY

BERYTON PLACE

WAY

DRIVE

CHURCH

DRIVE

DRIVE

VI
EW

MO
NT

WILLOWMEADE

WOODS

DRIVE

QUINBERY

DRIVE

WAY

HOLLAND
WAY

Quinn Ridge
Street Light Proposal

Legend

Gwinnett County 
Department of Transportation 

Traffic Safety Division 
January  2025

Assessment Area (303)

Proposed Street Lights (93)

Mountbery Drive

Trenton Drive

Quinbery Drive

Bethany Church Road

Menloe Way

September Way

Etna Drive

Holland Drive

Linwood Way

Rocmar Drive



ROCK PINE WAY

ROCKEY

ROCKY POINT COURT

SHANE  DRIVE

ASHLY PINES DRIVE

SHANE  DRIVE

BROOKE

ROAD

124

OPEN FIELDS DRIVE

DRIVE

BROOKE

HIGHPOINT ROAD

124

124

CENTERVILLE

(PRIVATE)

TUSCAN RIDGE DRIVE

HIGHWAY

CLEAR VIEW DRIVE

ROCK PINE WAY

ROAD

CENTERVILLE

OPEN FIELDS COURT

POINTE

SHANE  DRIVE

ROCK PINE

COURT

ASHLY

124

HIGHWAY

WAY

(PRIVATE)

COURT

HIGHPOINT

(PRIVATE)

CLEAR VIEW DRIVE

ASHLY  BROOKE  DRIVE

OPEN FIELDS LANE

ASHLY

Ashly Pines Phase 5
Street Light Proposal

Legend

Gwinnett County 
Department of Transportation 

Traffic Safety Division 
January 2025

Assessment Area (8)

Proposed Street Lights (2)

Rocky Point Court



BE
ECHWOOD

COURT
TARA

OLD TUCKER ROAD

MOUNTAIN

NOBLETT ROAD

BRADY

MOUNTAIN WOODS COURT

COURT

BRADY

OLD

BR
AD

YD
RI

VE

DRIVE

SCARLETT

NOBLETT

MELANIE

COURT

COURT

BRADY

BEECHWOOD

ROAD TUCKER

WOODS

ST
ON

E

COURT

ROAD

BRADY DRIVE

DRIVE

DRIVE

BEECHWOOD

COURT

NOBLETT

DRIVE

DRIVE

Beechwood Estates
Street Light Proposal

Legend

Gwinnett County 
Department of Transportation 

Traffic Safety Division
January 2025

Assessment Area (39)

Proposed Street Lights (12)

Old Tucker Road

Beechwood Drive

Beechwood Court



DRIVE

ROAD

CHANDLER  POINT

HOLLOW

LINWOOD

QUAIL

WAY

DRIVE

ERDLY

VARLET

BETHANY

KIT
TE

RY
PO

INT

CORDITE LOOP

PLACE

TRAIL

EVERSON

DRIVE
CREEK

MILL

DRIVE

CENTERVILL
E

LA
NE

HIGHWAY

CIRCLE

DRIVE

EVERSON

CHASE

DOVE

124

GL
YN

N

LANE

HIG
HW

AY

COURT

WILLOWWOOD

BERYTON

ESOM

DRIVE

HOLLAND

HOLLOW

OCTOBER DRIVE

LANE

FRYEBURG LANE

TRAIL

HOLLOW

MILIT
IA COURT

DRIVE

COURT

TROTTERS
CREST

PARK

COURT

WAY

DRIVE

DRIVE

MILL

COURT

TRAIL

ROAD

VILLAGE GLEN TRAIL

TRAIL

CIRCLE

DRIVE

QUINBERY

DRIVE

LANE

TRENTON

TRAIL

REVERE CIRCLE

REVERE

LOOP

CIRCLE

TROTTERS

COURT
GLYNN

FIFE

REVERE

QUINN

CIRCLE

ROAD

PATRIOT

PO
IN

TE
 C

OU
RT

WOOD

TEWKSBURY

EVERSON BAY COURT

EVERSON RIDGE COURT

CHASE

CENTERVILLE

DRIVE

DRIVE

ROAD

TWIN VILLAGE COURT

ROAD

GL
EN

 TR
AIL

124

WILLOWMEADE

MOUNTBERY

ROAD

BERYTON PLACE

BE
RY

TO
N 

PL
AC

E

ETNA

DRIVE

SEPTEMBER

MENLOE

ROAD

TRENTON

ERDLY

QUAIL

DRIVE

COURT

QUAIL

FENTON

EVERSON

PLACE

BROXTON

GL
YN

N

POINTE

PARK
DRIVE

SUNBRIDGE DRIVE

MILL

124

DRUM

DRIVE

ROAD

REVERE

SUNDERLAND

TR
OT

TE
RS

DRIVE

TROTTERS

COURT

QUINN

POINTE

BLOSSOM

HIGHWAY

GLYNN MILL COURT

GLEN

VILL
AGE

GLEN

GLEN

COURT

124

HI
GH

W
AY

CENTERVILLE

ARDEN

HEWATT

CLOUDLAND DRIVE

PLACE

DRIVE

EVERSON

CHURCH

264

GARNET WAY

LINWOOD  WAY

HOLLAND

264

LINWOOD

FRYEBURG PLACE

EMDEN COURT
FENTON

LOOP

CORDITE

MI
LL

MILL

CIRCLE

TROTTERS

BROXTO
N    M

ILL
    W

AY

POINTE

TROTTERS

BROXTO
N

BROXTON

CIRCLE

POINTE

WAY

RIDGE

ROLL

WAY

CHASE

DRIVE

FOX CHASE COURT

EVERSON

ROAD

VILLAGE

MI
LL

VILLAGE GLEN DRIVE

CHESTERFIELD

TWIN VILLAGE LANE

HIGHW
AY

ALLENDALE

RIDGE

LAUREL

COURT

BETHANY

DRIVE

TRAIL

DRIVE

ROAD

TRAIL

EVERSON

KITTERY DRIVE

ROAD

LO
CH

CH
IC

KO
RY

 H
ILL

CORDITE

SU
NBR

IDGE D
RIVE

ROCHELLE COURT

PARK

CENTERVILL
E

TROTTERS

DRIVE

HIGHWAY
EVERSON

MILL

WALK

GLYNN MILL

GLYNN

WAY

124

CE
NT

ER
VI

LL
E

PARKWOOD

VILLAGE GLEN COURT

HART

CENTERVILLE

ROAD

BETHANY

BERYTON PLACE

WAY

DRIVE

ASPERITY LANE

HOLLOW

HERRON

KIT
TE

RY D
RIVE

EMDEN TRAIL

KITTERY DRIVE

REVERE CIRCLE

REVERE

GLYNN

VIEW
DRIVE

DEER

COURT

DRIVE

RIDGE

EXETER

124

VILLAGE

CE
NT

ER
VIL

LE

PARKWOOD

CHESTERFIELD
HIGHW

AY

WOODS

QUINBERY

VIEW

LANE

QUAIL

DRIVE

WAY

HOLLAND

EASTMONT

WAY

CIRCLE

REVERE

ROAD

DRIVE

PARK

DRIVE

DRIVE

DRIVE

COURT

CENTERVILLE

HILL

NEWCASTLE

CO
UR

T

TWIN

VILL
AGE

LANE
VIL

LA
GE

VILLAGE GLEN TRAIL

ROAD

!(

Everson Road
Street Light Proposal

Legend

Gwinnett County 
Department of Transportation 

Traffic Safety Division
January 2025

Assessment Area (48)

Proposed Street Lights (18)

Everson Road



LYN

DRIVE

JEANETTE

WAY

HILL

LY
N

JEANETTE

DRIVE

LIBERTY VIEW COURT

WAY
WOODS

CASEY TRAIL
HERITAGE

TRAIL

BUCKLEY

BUCKLEY

BUCKLEY

DR
IVE

DRIVE

CARLA

BRITTNEY

LIBERTY

GLEN

DRIVE

PLACE

WOODS

JE
NN

Y

LYN

COURT

CASEY

WAY
VALLEY

PLACE

BUCKLEY

JENNY

SAMUEL

SAMUEL COURT

LANE
SAMUEL

BRITTNEY

PHIL NIEKRO

HERITAGE

VALLEY

ROAD

COURT

JENNY

ARC HERITAGE

PARKWAY

ROAD

PLACE

DRIVE

Mills Farm
Street Light Proposal

Legend

Gwinnett County 
Department of Transportation 

Traffic Safety Division 
January 2025

Assessment Area (200)

Proposed Street Lights (36)

Carla Place

Phil Niekro Pkwy

Brittney Way

Casey Trail

Jenny Lyn Court

Jenny Lyn Drive
Samuel Drive

Jeanette Court

Jeanette Lane

Samuel Court



GCID: 20250179 
  

Page 1 of 2 

 
 

GWINNETT COUNTY  
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

LAWRENCEVILLE, GEORGIA 
 
RESOLUTION ENTITLED:  Addition of Ashly Pines Phase 5 subdivision into the Gwinnett 
County Streetlighting Program  

 
ADOPTION DATE:  
 

At the regular meeting of the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners held in 
the Gwinnett Justice and Administration Center, Auditorium, 75 Langley Drive, 
Lawrenceville, Georgia. 
 
 

Name Present Vote 
Nicole L. Hendrickson, Chairwoman   
Kirkland Carden, District 1   
Ben Ku, District 2   
Jasper Watkins III, District 3   
Matthew Holtkamp, District 4   

 
 
 On motion of Commissioner _______________________ and carried by a _________ 
vote, the Resolution entitled, Addition of Ashly Pines Phase 5 subdivision into the 
Gwinnett County Streetlighting Program, as set forth below, is hereby adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 86 of the Code of Ordinances of Gwinnett County, entitled 
“Special Assessment Districts”, provides a process for a property owner, resident, or 
homeowners’ association representative to initiate the creation of a Special Assessment 
District for certain transportation improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Department of Transportation received a request to justify the 

creation of a Special Assessment District to incorporate Ashly Pines Phase 5 subdivision 
into the Gwinnett County Streetlighting Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners also directed the 
Gwinnett County Department of Transportation to prepare a recommendation and 
proceed with a public hearing for the incorporation of Ashly Pines Phase 5 subdivision 
into the Gwinnett County Streetlighting Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners held a duly advertised 
public hearing on February 25, 2025, regarding the creation of a Special Assessment 
District for the incorporation of Ashly Pines Phase 5 subdivision into the Gwinnett 
County Streetlighting Program; and 



GCID: 20250179 
  

Page 2 of 2 

 
 WHEREAS, notice to the public regarding said public hearing was duly published 
in THE GWINNETT DAILY POST, the Official News Organ of Gwinnett County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice regarding the public hearing was mailed out to each property 
owner located within the area of the proposed Special Assessment District in Ashly 
Pines Phase 5 subdivision. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners 
approves the recommendation of the Department of Transportation to create a Special 
Assessment District to incorporate the following subdivision into the Gwinnett County 
Streetlighting Program. 
 
 

SUBDIVISION & UNIT 
 

COMMISSION 
DISTRICT DISTRICT/LAND LOT 

Ashly Pines Phase 5 3 6/33 

 
 

 
This _____ day of _____________, 202__. 

     GWINNETT COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
     

BY:        
      NICOLE L. HENDRICKSON, CHAIRWOMAN 
 
ATTEST: 
 
BY:         (SEAL) 

TINA KING, COUNTY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
BY:       
 SENIOR ASSISTANT COUNTY ATTORNEY 
 



GCID: 20250179 
  

Page 1 of 2 

 
 

GWINNETT COUNTY  
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

LAWRENCEVILLE, GEORGIA 
 
RESOLUTION ENTITLED:  Addition of Everson Road into the Gwinnett County 
Streetlighting Program  

 
ADOPTION DATE:  
 

At the regular meeting of the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners held in 
the Gwinnett Justice and Administration Center, Auditorium, 75 Langley Drive, 
Lawrenceville, Georgia. 
 
 

Name Present Vote 
Nicole L. Hendrickson, Chairwoman   
Kirkland Carden, District 1   
Ben Ku, District 2   
Jasper Watkins III, District 3   
Matthew Holtkamp, District 4   

 
 
 On motion of Commissioner ________________________ and carried by a _________ 
vote, the Resolution entitled, Addition of Everson Road into the Gwinnett County 
Streetlighting Program, as set forth below, is hereby adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 86 of the Code of Ordinances of Gwinnett County, entitled 
“Special Assessment Districts”, provides a process for a property owner, resident, or 
homeowners’ association representative to initiate the creation of a Special Assessment 
District for certain transportation improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Department of Transportation received a request to justify the 

creation of a Special Assessment District to incorporate Everson Road into the Gwinnett 
County Streetlighting Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners also directed the 
Gwinnett County Department of Transportation to prepare a recommendation and 
proceed with a public hearing for the incorporation of Everson Road into the Gwinnett 
County Streetlighting Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners held a duly advertised 
public hearing on February 25, 2025, regarding the creation of a Special Assessment 
District for the incorporation of Everson Road into the Gwinnett County Streetlighting 
Program; and 



GCID: 20250179 
  

Page 2 of 2 

 
 WHEREAS, notice to the public regarding said public hearing was duly published 
in THE GWINNETT DAILY POST, the Official News Organ of Gwinnett County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice regarding the public hearing was mailed out to each property 
owner located within the area of the proposed Special Assessment District in Everson 
Road. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners 
approves the recommendation of the Department of Transportation to create a Special 
Assessment District to incorporate the following subdivision into the Gwinnett County 
Streetlighting Program. 
 
 

SUBDIVISION & UNIT 
 

COMMISSION 
DISTRICT DISTRICT/LAND LOT 

Everson Road 2 6/31,34 and 35 

 
 

 
This _____ day of ______, 202__. 

     GWINNETT COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
     

BY:        
      NICOLE L. HENDRICKSON, CHAIRWOMAN 
ATTEST: 
 
BY:         (SEAL) 

TINA KING, COUNTY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
BY:       
 SENIOR ASSISTANT COUNTY ATTORNEY 
 



GCID: 20250179 
  

Page 1 of 2 

 
 

GWINNETT COUNTY  
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

LAWRENCEVILLE, GEORGIA 
 
RESOLUTION ENTITLED:  Addition of Beechwood Estates subdivision into the Gwinnett 
County Streetlighting Program  

 
ADOPTION DATE:  
 

At the regular meeting of the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners held in 
the Gwinnett Justice and Administration Center, Auditorium, 75 Langley Drive, 
Lawrenceville, Georgia. 
 
 

Name Present Vote 
Nicole L. Hendrickson, Chairwoman   
Kirkland Carden, District 1   
Ben Ku, District 2   
Jasper Watkins III, District 3   
Matthew Holtkamp, District 4   

 
 
 On motion of Commissioner ________________________ and carried by a _________ 
vote, the Resolution entitled, Addition of Beechwood Estates subdivision into the 
Gwinnett County Streetlighting Program, as set forth below, is hereby adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 86 of the Code of Ordinances of Gwinnett County, entitled 
“Special Assessment Districts”, provides a process for a property owner, resident, or 
homeowners’ association representative to initiate the creation of a Special Assessment 
District for certain transportation improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Department of Transportation received a request to justify the 

creation of a Special Assessment District to incorporate Beechwood Estates subdivision 
into the Gwinnett County Streetlighting Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners also directed the 
Gwinnett County Department of Transportation to prepare a recommendation and 
proceed with a public hearing for the incorporation of Beechwood Estates subdivision 
into the Gwinnett County Streetlighting Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners held a duly advertised 
public hearing on February 25, 2025, regarding the creation of a Special Assessment 
District for the incorporation of Beechwood Estates subdivision into the Gwinnett County 
Streetlighting Program; and 



GCID: 20250179 
  

Page 2 of 2 

 
 WHEREAS, notice to the public regarding said public hearing was duly published 
in THE GWINNETT DAILY POST, the Official News Organ of Gwinnett County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice regarding the public hearing was mailed out to each property 
owner located within the area of the proposed Special Assessment District in 
Beechwood Estates subdivision. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners 
approves the recommendation of the Department of Transportation to create a Special 
Assessment District to incorporate the following subdivision into the Gwinnett County 
Streetlighting Program. 
 
 

SUBDIVISION & UNIT 
 

COMMISSION 
DISTRICT DISTRICT/LAND LOT 

Beechwood Estates 2 6/95 

 
 

 
This _____ day of ____________, 202__. 

     GWINNETT COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
     

BY:        
      NICOLE L. HENDRICKSON, CHAIRWOMAN 
 
ATTEST: 
 
BY:         (SEAL) 

TINA KING, COUNTY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
BY:       
 SENIOR ASSISTANT COUNTY ATTORNEY 
 



GCID: 20250179 
  

Page 1 of 2 

 
 

GWINNETT COUNTY  
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

LAWRENCEVILLE, GEORGIA 
 
RESOLUTIION ENTITLED:  Addition of Quinn Ridge subdivision into the Gwinnett County 
Streetlighting Program  

 
ADOPTION DATE:  
 

At the regular meeting of the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners held in 
the Gwinnett Justice and Administration Center, Auditorium, 75 Langley Drive, 
Lawrenceville, Georgia. 
 
 

Name Present Vote 
Nicole L. Hendrickson, Chairwoman   
Kirkland Carden, District 1   
Ben Ku, District 2   
Jasper Watkins III, District 3   
Matthew Holtkamp, District 4   

 
 
 On motion of Commissioner ________________________ and carried by a _________ 
vote, the Resolution entitled, Addition of Quinn Ridge subdivision into the Gwinnett 
County Streetlighting Program, as set forth below, is hereby adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 86 of the Code of Ordinances of Gwinnett County, entitled 
“Special Assessment Districts”, provides a process for a property owner, resident, or 
homeowners’ association representative to initiate the creation of a Special Assessment 
District for certain transportation improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Department of Transportation received a request to justify the 

creation of a Special Assessment District to incorporate Quinn Ridge subdivision into the 
Gwinnett County Streetlighting Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners also directed the 
Gwinnett County Department of Transportation to prepare a recommendation and 
proceed with a public hearing for the incorporation of Quinn Ridge subdivision into the 
Gwinnett County Streetlighting Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners held a duly advertised 
public hearing on February 25, 2025, regarding the creation of a Special Assessment 
District for the incorporation of the Quinn Ridge subdivision into the Gwinnett County 
Streetlighting Program; and 



GCID: 20250179 
  

Page 2 of 2 

 
 WHEREAS, notice to the public regarding said public hearing was duly published 
in THE GWINNETT DAILY POST, the Official News Organ of Gwinnett County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice regarding the public hearing was mailed out to each property 
owner located within the area of the proposed Special Assessment District in Quinn 
Ridge subdivision. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners 
approves the recommendation of the Department of Transportation to create a Special 
Assessment District to incorporate the following subdivision into the Gwinnett County 
Streetlighting Program. 
 
 

SUBDIVISION & UNIT 
 

COMMISSION 
DISTRICT DISTRICT/LAND LOT 

Quinn Ridge 2 6/35 and 36 

 
 

 
This _____ day of ___________, 202__. 

     GWINNETT COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
     

BY:        
      NICOLE L. HENDRICKSON, CHAIRWOMAN 
ATTEST: 
 
BY:         (SEAL) 

TINA KING, COUNTY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
BY:       
 SENIOR ASSISTANT COUNTY ATTORNEY 
 



GCID: 20250179 
  

Page 1 of 2 

 
 

GWINNETT COUNTY  
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

LAWRENCEVILLE, GEORGIA 
 
RESOLUTION ENTITLED:  Addition of Mills Farm subdivision into the Gwinnett County 
Streetlighting Program  

 
ADOPTION DATE:  
 

At the regular meeting of the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners held in 
the Gwinnett Justice and Administration Center, Auditorium, 75 Langley Drive, 
Lawrenceville, Georgia. 
 
 

Name Present Vote 
Nicole L. Hendrickson, Chairwoman   
Kirkland Carden, District 1   
Ben Ku, District 2   
Jasper Watkins III, District 3   
Matthew Holtkamp, District 4   

 
 
 On motion of Commissioner ________________________ and carried by a _________ 
vote, the Resolution entitled, Addition of Mills Farm subdivision into the Gwinnett County 
Streetlighting Program, as set forth below, is hereby adopted: 
 

WHEREAS, Chapter 86 of the Code of Ordinances of Gwinnett County, entitled 
“Special Assessment Districts”, provides a process for a property owner, resident, or 
homeowners’ association representative to initiate the creation of a Special Assessment 
District for certain transportation improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Department of Transportation received a request to justify the 

creation of a Special Assessment District to incorporate Mills Farm subdivision into the 
Gwinnett County Streetlighting Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners also directed the 
Gwinnett County Department of Transportation to prepare a recommendation and 
proceed with a public hearing for the incorporation of Mills Farm subdivision into the 
Gwinnett County Streetlighting Program; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners held a duly advertised 
public hearing on February 25, 2025, regarding the creation of a Special Assessment 
District for the incorporation of Mills Farm subdivision into the Gwinnett County 
Streetlighting Program; and 



GCID: 20250179 
  

Page 2 of 2 

 
 WHEREAS, notice to the public regarding said public hearing was duly published 
in THE GWINNETT DAILY POST, the Official News Organ of Gwinnett County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice regarding the public hearing was mailed out to each property 
owner located within the area of the proposed Special Assessment District in Mills Farm 
subdivision. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners 
approves the recommendation of the Department of Transportation to create a Special 
Assessment District to incorporate the following subdivision into the Gwinnett County 
Streetlighting Program. 
 
 

SUBDIVISION & UNIT 
 

COMMISSION 
DISTRICT DISTRICT/LAND LOT 

Mills Farm 2 6/176 

 
 

 
This _____ day of __________, 202__. 

     GWINNETT COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
     

BY:        
      NICOLE L. HENDRICKSON, CHAIRWOMAN 
ATTEST: 
 
BY:         (SEAL) 

TINA KING, COUNTY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
BY:       
 SENIOR ASSISTANT COUNTY ATTORNEY 
 



Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners Agenda Request

Authorization: 

Planning and Development

Recommendation:

Planning Commission

Recommendation:

GCID # Group With GCID #:
Rezoning Public Hearing

Department: Date Submitted:

Working Session: Business Session: Public Hearing:

Submitted By:

Agenda Type Rezoning Type

Item of Business:

Land Lot:

District:

Attachments

Chairwoman's Signature?

Department Head

Comments

Tabled 

Motion 

2nd by

Vote

Approve

Approve with Conditions 

Appr w/ Cond As

Deny w/out Prejudice

Deny PH was Held?

No Recommendation

District For Against Abstained Absent

County Clerk Use Only 
Working Session

Action 

District 1

District 1

District 2

District 2

District 3

District 3

District 4

District 4

At Large

Tabled - Date

Approve

Approve with Conditions 

Approve with Conditions As 

Deny

Deny w/out Prejudice

No Recommendation

Parcel:

20250205

Planning & Development 02/04/2025

Rezoning SUP

053

6

004B

Department Case Report with Planning Commission Recommendation

jjleitch (2/12/2025)

✔ ✔

02/25/2025

tmdial

2025-00001, Applicant: John G. McKee; Owner: Hewatt Road JGM, LLC; Tax Parcel No. R6053 004B; 2121 Hewatt Road; Special Use Permit 
in an M-1 Zoning District for a Vehicle Repair, Service, and Body Work Establishment; 0.97 acres; District 2/Ku

Yes

Public Hearing

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

■

■

Aysha Treadwell

Nick Nicolosi

Anthony Crotser

Pinkie Farver

Ben Archer

Katrina Fellows

Buzz Brockway

Chris Franklin

Scott Haggard



Planning Commission Advertised Public Hearing Date: 2/4/2025 
Board of Commissioners Advertised Public Hearing Date: 2/25/2025 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

Case Number: SUP2025-00001 
Current Zoning: M-1 (Light Industry District)
Request: Special Use Permit
Overlay District: Highway 78 Corridor
Address: 2121 Hewatt Road
Map Number: R6053 004B
Site Area: 0.97 acres
Square Feet: 2,243
Proposed Development: Vehicle Repair, Service, and Body Work Establishment
Commission District:  District 2 – Commissioner Ku
Future Development Type: Neighborhood Low Mix 

Staff Recommendation:   DENIAL     

Planning Commission 
Recommendation:   DENIAL 



Applicant: John G. McKee Owner: Hewatt Road JGM LLC 
10803 Glen Mist Lane 3220 Pointe Parkway 
Fairfax, VA 22030 Peachtree Corners, GA 30092 

Contact:  John McKee  Contact Phone:        703.395.7494 

Zoning History 

The subject property is zoned M-1 (Light Industry District). No prior zoning requests are on record for 
this property. The subject property is located in the Highway 78 Corridor Overlay District. 

Existing Site Condition 

The subject property is a 0.97-acre parcel located at the southwest corner of Hewatt Road and 
McDaniel Connector. The property is developed with a 12,669 square-foot warehouse and an unstriped 
parking lot constructed in 1985, accessed from Hewatt Road. Natural vegetation exists along McDaniel 
Connector. There is a sidewalk along Hewatt Road, but none along McDaniel Connector.  

Surrounding Use and Zoning 

The property is surrounded by commercial, industrial, and single-family detached subdivisions. Brooks 
Enclave and Rainbow Estates subdivisions are located across McDaniel Connector and Hewatt Road, 
respectively. To the west is a contractor’s office and to the south is a vehicle rental establishment. The 
following is a summary of surrounding uses and zoning: 

Location Land Use Zoning 
Proposed Vehicle Body Work Establishment M-1

North Single-Family Residential R-60
East Single-Family Residential R-100

South Commercial C-2 & M-1
West Industrial M-1

SUP2025-00001 Page 2 of 28 JG



Project Summary 

The applicant requests a special use permit for a vehicle repair, service, and body work establishment, 
including: 

• Operation in a 2,243 square-foot suite within the multi-tenant warehouse, accessed from the
rear of the building.

• Hours of operation 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. on
Saturday, with up to two employees on site.

• Striping of the parking lot to include four spaces in front of the building and five spaces behind
the building.

Zoning and Development Standards 

The applicant is requesting a special use permit for a vehicle repair, service, and body work 
establishment. The following is a summary of applicable development standards from the Unified 
Development Ordinance (UDO):  

Standard Required Existing Meets Standard? 
Maximum FAR Maximum 1.0 <1.0 YES 

Maximum Lot Coverage Maximum 80% 75% YES 
Front Yard Setback Minimum 50’ 50.2’ YES 
Rear Yard Setback Minimum 50’ 48’ NO* 
Side Yard Setback Minimum 25’ 18.8’ NO* 

Maximum Building Height Maximum 45’ 26’ YES 
Landscape Strip Minimum 10’ 0’ NO* 

Parking (Commercial) Minimum 5 spaces 
Maximum 9 spaces 9 spaces YES 

* The site was constructed in 1985 and is legally nonconforming.

The property is located within the Highway 78 Corridor Overlay District, and the overlay standards apply 
to applicable and affected portions of a redeveloped site, however no portions of the site are proposed 
to be redeveloped or modified.  

Internal and External Agency Review 

In addition to these Development Standards, the applicant must meet all other UDO requirements 
related to infrastructure improvements. Internal and External agency review comments are attached 
(Exhibit G). Standard site and infrastructure improvements will also be required related to stormwater, 
transportation, water, and sewer utilities. Recommended improvements not already required by the 
UDO have been added as staff recommended conditions. 

Staff Analysis 

Special Use Permit Analysis: According to the UDO, the staff analysis and recommendation on each 
application for a Special Use Permit shall follow the same procedures as those contained in Section 
270-20. Emphasis shall be given to the evaluation of characteristics of the proposed use in relationship
to neighboring properties and the compatibility of the proposed use with its surroundings. After the
evaluation, staff makes the following findings based on the standards of the UDO:

SUP2025-00001 Page 3 of 28 JG



A. Whether a proposed special use permit will permit a use that is suitable in view of the use and 
development of adjacent and nearby property. 

 
The subject property is in close proximity to single-family detached subdivisions. The proposed 
use would introduce an auto-oriented establishment closer to established residential 
subdivisions. The proposed special use permit will permit a use that is not suitable in view of 
the use and development of adjacent and nearby property. 
 

B. Whether a proposed special use permit will adversely affect the existing use or usability of 
adjacent or nearby property. 

 
Single-family detached subdivisions are located across McDaniel Connector and Hewatt Road 
from the subject property. The proposed vehicle repair shop specializes in muffler installation 
and vehicle customization, which could require the use of heavy equipment and generate a 
significant amount of noise. The proposed special use permit would adversely affect the 
existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby property 

 
C. Whether the property to be affected by a proposed special use permit has a reasonable 

economic use as currently zoned. 
 

The property has a reasonable economic use as currently zoned. 
 

D. Whether the proposed special use permit will result in a use which will or could cause an 
excessive or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, or schools. 

 
A minimal increase in impacts on public facilities would be anticipated in the form of traffic, 
utility demand, and stormwater runoff; however, these impacts would be mitigated with 
appropriate conditions, site development requirements, and planning. No impact is anticipated 
on school enrollment. Agency review comments related to any potential improvements 
concerning this special use permit request are attached (Exhibit G).  
 

E. Whether the proposed special use permit is in conformity with the policy and intent of the 
Unified Plan and Future Development Map; and 

 
The Unified Plan's Future Development Map indicates "Neighborhood Low Mix" for the subject 
property, which envisions a horizontal mixed-use development. Appropriate non-residential uses 
include office, retail and entertainment which would complement residential uses. Auto-oriented 
commercial uses are not recommended in the future development type. The proposed special 
use permit is not in conformity with the policy and intent of the Unified Plan and Future 
Development Map. 
 

SUP2025-00001 Page 4 of 28 JG



F. Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of
the property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the proposed
special use permit.

There are no other conditions giving support for approval or disapproval of the proposal.

Staff Recommendation 

Based on the staff’s evaluation of the request and the standards governing the exercise of zoning 
power, the Department of Planning and Development recommends DENIAL of the special use permit 
request. 

Staff Recommended Conditions 

NOTE: The following conditions are provided as a guide should the Board of Commissioners choose to 
approve this petition. 

Approval of a special use permit for a vehicle repair, service, and body work establishment in M-1 (Light 
Industry District), subject to the following conditions: 

1. Uses shall be limited to a vehicle repair, service, and body work establishment located within a
2,243 square-foot suite labeled GH, as shown on Exhibit C: Floor Plan, dated received October
29, 2024, subject to the review and approval of the Department of Planning and Development.

2. All vehicle repair, service, and body work shall take place indoors.

3. Vehicle sales, salvage of inoperable vehicles, and outdoor storage of automobile parts or tires
shall be prohibited.

4. Hours of operation shall be limited to 9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., Monday to Friday, and 10:00 a.m.
to 3:00 p.m. on Saturday.

SUP2025-00001 Page 5 of 28 JG



Planning Commission Recommendation 

Based on staff’s evaluation of the request, information presented at the public hearing, and the 
Planning Commission’s consideration of the standards governing the exercise of zoning power related 
to this application, the Planning Commission recommends DENIAL of the special use permit request.  

SUP2025-00001 Page 6 of 28 JG



Exhibits: 
A. Site Visit Photos
B. Site Plan
C. Floor Plan
D. Building Elevations
E. Letter of Intent and Applicant’s Response to Standards
F. Application and Disclosure of Campaign Contributions
G. Internal and External Agency Review Comments
H. Maps

SUP2025-00001 Page 7 of 28 JG



Exhibit A: Site Visit Photos 

View of the building from Hewatt Road 

View of the suite where the proposed special use permit would apply 

SUP2025-00001 Page 8 of 28 JG



View of the neighboring residences across McDaniel Connector 

View of the road frontage along Hewatt Road 

SUP2025-00001 Page 9 of 28 JG



Exhibit B: Site Plan 

[attached] 

SUP2025-00001 Page 10 of 28 JG



SUP2025-00001 Page 11 of 28 JG

Marc Rosengart
Received



Exhibit C: Floor Plan 

[attached] 

SUP2025-00001 Page 12 of 28 JG



SUP2025-00001 Page 13 of 28 JG

Marc Rosengart
Received



Exhibit D: Building Elevations 

[attached] 

SUP2025-00001 Page 14 of 28 JG



SUP2025-00001 Page 15 of 28 JG

Marc Rosengart
Received



Exhibit E: Letter of Intent and Applicant’s Response to Standards 

[attached] 

SUP2025-00001 Page 16 of 28 JG



GWINNETT COUNTY 
PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 

RECEIVED 
12/4/2024

SUP2025-00001 Page 17 of 28 JG



SUP2025-00001 Page 18 of 28 JG



Exhibit F: Application and Disclosure of Campaign Contributions 

[attached] 

SUP2025-00001 Page 19 of 28 JG



SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION 

AN APPLICATION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF GWINNETT COUNTY, GA. 

APPLICANT INFORMATION PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION 

Name: 

Address: 

City: 

State: ZIP: 

Phone: 

Email: 

Name: 

Address: 

City: 

State:  ZIP: 

Phone: 

Email: 

Contact Person: Phone: 

Contact’s Email:  

APPLICANT IS THE: 

OWNER’S AGENT PROPERTY OWNER CONTRACT PURCHASER 

Existing/Proposed Zoning District(s): 

Parcel Number(s):    Acreage: 

Property Address(es):   

Proposed Development:   

Variance(s):                 Waiver(s): 

  Building/Leased Sq. Ft.:        Floor Area Ratio:   

John McKee

10803 Glen Mist Lane

Fairfax

VA 22030

703-395-7494

metroatm@yahoo.com

Hewatt Road JGM LLC

3220 Pointe Parkway

Peachtree Corners

GA 30092

703-395-7494

metroatm@yahoo.com

John McKee 703-395-7494

metroatm@yahoo.com

M-1 (Light Industry District)

R6053 004B 0.97

N/AAllow 44 percent of parking between the front 
building line and the right-of-way.

12,669 total / 2,243 leased

2121 Hewatt Road, Snellville, GA, 30039

0.3

Vehicle  Repair, Service, and Body Work Establishment

SUP2025-00001 Page 20 of 28 JG

Jack Gottfried
Received



SUP2025-00001 Page 21 of 28 JG



Exhibit G: Internal and External Agency Review Comments 

[attached] 

SUP2025-00001 Page 22 of 28 JG



Department of Planning and Development 

TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE

Note: Attach additional pages, if needed 

Revised 7/26/2021 

TRC Meeting Date: 

Department/Agency Name: DWR 

Reviewer Name: Mike Pappas 

Reviewer Title: GIS Planning Manager 

Reviewer Email Address: Michael.pappas@gwinnettcounty.com 

Case Number:  SUP2025-00001 

Case Address:  2121 Hewatt Rd 

       Comments:   X     YES  NO 

1  Water: GCDWR does not have comments for this Special Use Permit. The existing facility is connected to 

public water. 

2  Sewer: GCDWR does not have comments for this Special Use Permit. The existing facility is on septic and 

will remain on septic. 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

Recommended Zoning Conditions:        YES X NO 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

SUP2025-00001 Page 23 of 28 JG

mailto:Michael.pappas@gwinnettcounty.com




Exhibit H: Maps 

[attached] 

SUP2025-00001 Page 25 of 28 JG



H
E

W
ATT

R
D

VERACRUZ
D

R

COLIM
A WAY

STONE

MOUNTAIN
HWY

MCDANIEL CONN
MCDANIELS

BRIDGE RD

MCDANIELS BRIDGE CT

RAINBOW
CIR

R
A

IN
B

O
W

D
R

STONE MOUNTAIN
HWY

BROOK ENCLAVE TRL

Gwinnett County GIS¯ 0 200100

Feet

SUP2025-00001

Created: December 30, 2024

Path: Q:\Planning_and_Development\current planning\monthly agenda maps\2025 agenda maps\02-February\February 2025 Monthly Agenda\February 2025 Monthly Agenda.aprx User: zjvill



K
ILLIA

N
H

ILL
R

D

H
E

W
ATT

R
D

PARKWOOD RD

VERACRUZ DR

L
IG

N
E

Y
C

T

W
ILLO

W

W
IS

P
W

AY

T

UL LA MORE CIR

P
O

IN
T

G
IV

E
N

LN

MAIER CT

C
H

IN
A

B
E

R
R

Y

D
R

EMBASSY

W
ALK

CT

M
IN

E
O

L
A

 S
T

TU
LLA

M
O

R
E

LN

CORRAL WAY

K
E

N
S

IN
G

T
O

N
C

T

MCDANIEL CONN

C
ID

E
R

P
R

E
S

S
T

R
L

R
O

Y
A

L

O
R

B
IT

D
R

K
E

L IN CT

O
A

K
LA

N
D

S
P

R
IN

G
D

R

W
IN

D
C

R
E

S
T

D
R

B
E

T
H

A
N

Y
C

H
U

R
C

H
 R

D

STONE MOUNTAIN
HWY

STONE MOUNTAIN
HWY

W
ILD

FLO
W

E
R

LN

WILLOW
WALK

MCDANIELS BRIDGE CT

CHINABERRY

LN

E
LM

P
A

R
K

LN

K
E

N
S

IN
G

TO
N

H
IG

H
S T

PARKWOOD

HILLS CT

W
H

IS
P

E
R

IN
G

W
ILLO

W
W

AY

M
O

N
TER

EY
D

R

LAMAR W
AY

SILO TRCE

KNIGHTS

BRIDGE RD

RAINBOW CIR

E
M

B
A

S
S

Y
W

ALK
LN

SCENIC MOUNTAIN DR

P
O

N
D

E
D

G
E

R
D

ELI DR

WESTSIDE CT

PAXTON LN
COLIM

A WAY

S
U

M
M

E
R

K
ITC

H
EN

W
AY

O
AKLA ND PARK BLVD

EMBASSY WAY

MCDANIELS BRIDGE RD

BIRCHWOOD TRL

C
O

U
NTRY WALK

R
A

IN
B

O
W

D
R

HEWATT CT

B
R

O
O

K
E

N
C

LAV
E

TR
L

C2

C2

R100

R100

C2
RTH

RA200

R75

C2

R60

R100MOD

R100

R100

R100

C2

RZT

C2

RZT

R100

R100

R100

R100

C2C2

R100

C2

C2

C2

C2

R100

C2

R100

R100

R100

R100

OI

M1

OI

RM

R100

R100

C2

C2

R100

¯ 0 600300

Feet

SUP2025-00001

Created: December 30, 2024 SUBJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING ZONING
Path: Q:\Planning_and_Development\current planning\monthly agenda maps\2025 agenda maps\02-February\February 2025 Monthly Agenda\February 2025 Monthly Agenda.aprx User: zjvill

M1



KILLIAN
H

ILL
R

D

H
E

W
ATT

R
D

PA
R

K
W

O
O

D
R

D

VERACRUZ DR

TU
LLA

M
O

R
E

C
IR

P
O

IN
T

G
IV

E
N

LN

TU
LLA

M
O

R
E

LN

K
E

N
S

IN
G

T
O

N
C

T

MCDANIEL CONN

C
ID

E
R

P
R

E
S

S
T

R
L

STONE MOUNTAIN
HWY

STONE MOUNTAIN HWY

WILLOW
WALK

MCDANIELS BRIDGE CT

CHINABERRY LN

K
E

N
S

IN
G

TO
N

H
IG

H
S

T

LAMAR W
AY

RAINBOW
CIR

E
M

B
A

S
S

Y
W

A
LK

LN

ELI DR

WESTSIDE CT

PAXTON LN

COLIM
A WAY

OAKLAND PARK BLVD

EMBASSY WAY

MCDANIELS BRIDGE RD

BIRCHWOOD TRL

COUNTRY

WALK

R
A

IN
B

O
W

D
R

HEWATT CT

B
R

O
O

K
E

N
C

LAV
E

TR
L

Center
- Medium

Center -
Medium

Center -
Medium

Low Mix
Low
Mix

Low Mix

Low Mix

Low Mix

Low Mix

Low Mix

Low Mix

Suburban
Non-Residential

Suburban
Non-Residential

Suburban
Residential

Suburban
Residential

Suburban
Residential

Traditional

Traditional

Traditional

Traditional

Traditional

Traditional

Traditional+

Traditional+

Traditional+

Traditional+

¯ 0 600300

Feet

SUP2025-00001

Created: December 30, 2024 2045 UNIFIED PLAN FUTURE DEVELOPMENT CLASSIFICATION
Path: Q:\Planning_and_Development\current planning\monthly agenda maps\2025 agenda maps\02-February\February 2025 Monthly Agenda\February 2025 Monthly Agenda.aprx User: zjvill



Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners Agenda Request

Authorization: 

Planning and Development

Recommendation:

Planning Commission

Recommendation:

GCID # Group With GCID #:
Rezoning Public Hearing

Department: Date Submitted:

Working Session: Business Session: Public Hearing:

Submitted By:

Agenda Type Rezoning Type

Item of Business:

Land Lot:

District:

Attachments

Chairwoman's Signature?

Department Head

Comments

Tabled 

Motion 

2nd by

Vote

Approve

Approve with Conditions 

Appr w/ Cond As

Deny w/out Prejudice

Deny PH was Held?

No Recommendation

District For Against Abstained Absent

County Clerk Use Only 
Working Session

Action 

District 1

District 1

District 2

District 2

District 3

District 3

District 4

District 4

At Large

Tabled - Date

Approve

Approve with Conditions 

Approve with Conditions As 

Deny

Deny w/out Prejudice

No Recommendation

Parcel:

20250206

Planning & Development 02/04/2025

Rezoning REZ

099

5

023

Department Case Report with Planning Commission Recommendation

jjleitch (2/12/2025)

✔ ✔

02/25/2025

tmdial

2025-00003, Applicant: Timothy A. Shumaker c/o LJA Engineering; Owner: Timothy A. Shumaker; Rezoning of Tax Parcel No. R5099 023; 
1180 Temple Johnson Road; R-100 to R-60 for a Single-Family Detached Subdivision; 19.84 acres; District 3/Watkins

Yes

Public Hearing

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

■

■

Nick Nicolosi

Aysha Treadwell

Anthony Crotser

Pinkie Farver

Ben Archer

Katrina Fellows

Buzz Brockway

Chris Franklin

Scott Haggard



  

 
Planning Commission Advertised Public Hearing Date: 2/4/2025 
Board of Commissioners Advertised Public Hearing Date: 2/25/2025 

 

 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
CASE REPORT 

 
Case Number: REZ2025-00003 
Current Zoning: R-100 (Single-Family Residence District)  
Request: Rezoning to R-60 (Single-Family Residence District) 
Address:  1180 Temple Johnson Road 
Map Number:  R5099 023 
Site Area:  19.84 acres  
Units:  60    
Proposed Development: Single-Family Detached Subdivision 
Commission District:  District 3 – Commissioner Watkins 
Future Development Type: Suburban Residential 
 
Staff Recommendation:   APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS  
 
Planning Commission 
Recommendation:   APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS 
 

           

  



Applicant: Timothy A. Shumaker c/o LJA Engineering Owner: Timothy A. Shumaker 
 P.O. Box 1891  P.O. Box 1891 
 Loganville, GA 30052  Loganville, GA 30052 
    

Contact:  Tyler Lasser                 Contact Phone:              470.202.9321 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
Zoning History  
 
The subject property is zoned R-100 (Single-Family Residence District). In 1973, the property was part 
of an areawide rezoning, which rezoned the property from RA-200 (Agriculture-Residence District) to R-
100.   
 
Existing Site Condition 
 
The subject property is a 19.84-acre parcel located along Temple Johnson Road, east of its intersection 
with Rosebud Road. The property contains a single-family residence and accessory buildings, and is 
accessed by a gated driveway from Temple Johnson Road. The perimeter of the site is wooded. A pond 
is located at the southeastern corner of the property. The terrain gradually falls towards the rear of the 
site by approximately 34 feet. A 100-foot-wide overhead power easement runs along the southern 
property line. There is no sidewalk along the road frontage. The nearest Gwinnett County transit stop is 
approximately 5.1 miles from the subject property. 
 
Surrounding Use and Zoning 
 
The site is surrounded by single-family detached subdivisions. Soleil Summit Chase is located to the 
north across Temple Johnson Road, in the City of Snellville. The Estates at Brushy Fork is located to the 
east and currently under construction. Firethorn and Firethorn North are located to the south and west, 
respectively. The following is a summary of surrounding uses and zoning:  

REZ2025-00003 Page 2 of 53 MR



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Project Summary 
 
The applicant requests rezoning of a 19.84-acre property from R-100 to R-60 for a single-family 
detached subdivision, including: 

• 60 single-family detached residences on lots ranging from 7,200 to 10,812 square feet, yielding 
a density of 3.02 units per acre. 

• One-story ranch houses with a minimum heated floor area of 1,400 square feet, and two-story 
houses with a minimum heated floor area of 2,000 square feet.  

• All houses contain front-loaded, two-car garages. 
• Exterior building materials of brick and/or stone, and cementitious siding as indicated in the 

letter of intent. Because the ranch house elevations only show cementitious siding, without 
brick or stone, a zoning condition has been added to ensure compliance.  

• 2.98 acres of open space located primarily within the overhead power easement, with 1 acre of 
usable open space comprised of a play park, trails, and a community pavilion in the center of 
the subdivision.  

• A mail kiosk with 6 parallel parking spaces adjacent to the play park. 
• A 25-foot-wide landscape strip along the western property line and a 20-foot-wide landscape 

strip north of the overhead power easement. 
• A 40-foot-wide setback with a 10-foot-wide landscape strip along Temple Johnson Road. 
• 27-foot-wide internal streets with 4-foot-wide sidewalks.  
• One full-access entrance with a deceleration lane and 5-foot-wide sidewalk along Temple 

Johnson Road. 
• A stormwater management facility in the southwest corner of the property. 

 
Zoning and Development Standards 
 
The applicant is requesting a rezoning to R-60 for a single-family detached subdivision. The following is 
a summary of applicable development standards from the Unified Development Ordinance (UDO):  
 

Standard Required Proposed Meets Standard? 
Density Maximum 4.0 units per acre 3.02 units per acre YES  
Lot Size Minimum 7,200 square feet > 7,200 square feet YES  

Lot Width Minimum 60’ > 60 feet YES 
Lot Coverage Maximum 60% 35% YES  

Front Yard Minimum 15’ 15’ YES 
Rear Yard Minimum 20’ 20’ YES 
Side Yard Minimum 5’ 5’ YES 

Building Height Maximum 35’ ≤35’ YES 
Open Space Minimum 10% or 1.98 acres 15% or 2.98 acres YES 

Usable Open Space Minimum 5% or 1 acre 5% or 1 acre YES 

Location Land Use Zoning Density 
Proposed Single-Family Residential R-60 3.02 units per acre 

North Single-Family Residential  RO  
(City of Snellville) 3.41 units per acre 

East Single-Family Residential TND 3.09 units per acre 
South Single-Family Residential R-100 2.18 units per acre 
West Single-Family Residential R-100 2.03 units per acre 

REZ2025-00003 Page 3 of 53 MR



Public Participation 
 
The applicant held a community meeting on November 20, 2024, at the Snellville Community Church. 
There were six community members in attendance who raised concerns regarding stormwater runoff 
and the existing pond. The applicant explained that the existing pond will be removed and that a 
stormwater management facility will be constructed as part of this development.  
 
Internal and External Agency Review 
 
In addition to these Development Standards, the applicant must meet all other UDO requirements 
related to infrastructure improvements. Internal and External agency review comments are attached 
(Exhibit I). Standard site and infrastructure improvements will also be required related to stormwater, 
transportation, water, and sewer utilities. Recommended improvements not already required by the 
UDO have been added as staff recommended conditions. 
 
Staff Analysis 
 
Rezoning Request Analysis: According to the UDO, if a proposed amendment is for the rezoning of 
property and involves a change in zoning classification, the Department shall evaluate the request and 
make a recommendation with respect to the standards governing exercise of zoning power as defined 
in Section 270-20.6. After this evaluation, staff makes the following findings based on the standards 
from the UDO: 
 

A. Whether a proposed rezoning will permit a use that is suitable in view of the use and 
development of adjacent and nearby property. 

 
The subject property is surrounded by single-family detached subdivisions of similar densities. 
The proposed rezoning will permit a use that is suitable in view of the use and development of 
adjacent and nearby property. 
 

B. Whether a proposed rezoning will adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or 
nearby property. 

 
The proposal is compatible with the context, character, and development pattern of nearby 
residential subdivisions. The applicant proposes landscape strips along the western and 
southern property lines to mitigate any potential impacts to existing residences. The proposed 
rezoning will not adversely affect the existing use or usability of adjacent or nearby property.  

 
C. Whether the property to be affected by a proposed rezoning has a reasonable economic use as 

currently zoned. 
 

The property has a reasonable economic use as currently zoned. 
 

D. Whether the proposed rezoning will result in a use which will or could cause an excessive or 
burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, or schools. 

 
An increase in impacts on public facilities would be anticipated in the form of traffic, utility 
demand, and stormwater runoff; however, these impacts could be mitigated with appropriate 
conditions, site development requirements, and planning. The traffic impact study (Exhibit G) 

REZ2025-00003 Page 4 of 53 MR



estimated the development would generate 47 morning and 61 evening peak hour trips, and that 
the proposed intersection would operate at an acceptable level of service with the addition of a 
deceleration lane. An increased impact is anticipated on school enrollment. Agency review 
comments related to any potential improvements concerning this rezoning request are attached 
(Exhibit I).  
 

E. Whether the proposed rezoning is in conformity with the policy and intent of the Unified Plan 
and Future Development Map; and 

 
The Unified Plan’s Future Development Map indicates "Suburban Residential" for the subject 
property. Single-family detached is a recommended land use and R-60 is a recommended 
zoning district for the future development type. The proposed development is in conformity with 
the policy and intent of the Unified Plan and Future Development Map. 
 

  
F. Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and development of 

the property which give supporting grounds for either approval or disapproval of the proposed 
rezoning. 

 
There are no other conditions giving support for approval or disapproval of the proposal. 

 
Staff Recommendation 
 
Based on the staff’s evaluation of the request and the standards governing the exercise of zoning 
power, the Department of Planning and Development recommends APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS of 
the rezoning request. 
 
 
 
 
 

REZ2025-00003 Page 5 of 53 MR



Planning Commission Recommendation 
 
Based on staff’s evaluation of the request, information presented at the public hearing, and the 
Planning Commission’s consideration of the standards governing the exercise of zoning power related 
to this application, the Planning Commission recommends APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS of the 
rezoning request. 
 
Planning Commission Recommended Conditions (includes Staff Recommended Conditions, 
as Amended) 
 
Approval as R-60 (Single-Family Residence District) for a single-family detached subdivision, subject to 
the following conditions: 
 

1. The development shall be limited to single-family detached dwellings and accessory uses and 
structures, not exceeding 60 units. 
 

2. The proposed development shall be constructed in general conformance with Exhibit B: Site 
Plan dated received January 3, 2025, subject to the review and approval of the Department of 
Planning and Development. 

 
3. The front elevations of the two-story residences shall be constructed in general conformance 

with Exhibit C: Building Elevations dated received November 26, 2024. The front elevations of 
one-story residences shall contain at least 50 percent brick and/or stone. Both shall be subject 
to the review and approval of the Department of Planning and Development. 
 

4. The minimum heated floor area of the one-story residences shall be 1,400 square feet, and the 
minimum heated floor area of the two-story residences shall be 2,000 square feet. 
 

5. Open space shall be provided including, but not limited to, a pavilion, playpark, and trails, in 
general conformance with Exhibit B: Site Plan dated received January 3, 2025, subject to the 
review and approval of the Department of Planning and Development. 
 

6. A 25-foot-wide landscape buffer shall be provided along the western property line, and a 20-
foot-wide landscape buffer shall be provided along the overhead power easement, in general 
conformance with Exhibit B: Site Plan dated received January 3, 2025, subject to the review and 
approval of the Department of Planning and Development. 

 
7. A curb cut, a deceleration lane and a 5-foot-wide sidewalk shall be provided along Temple 

Johnson Road, subject to the review and approval of the Gwinnett County Department of 
Transportation. 

 
8. Natural vegetation shall remain on the property until the issuance of a development permit. 

 
9. All grassed areas within lots and usable open space shall be sodded. 

 
10. Stormwater BMP facilities shall be screened from view of adjoining properties and rights-of-way 

by landscaping and/or decorative fencing that is in compliance with the Gwinnett County 
Stormwater Management Manual, subject to the review and approval by the Department of 
Planning and Development. 

REZ2025-00003 Page 6 of 53 MR



11. Development shall be limited to a maximum of 10 percent rental units. This restriction will be 
included in the covenants and will be managed by a mandatory homeowners association. 

 
 
  

REZ2025-00003 Page 7 of 53 MR



Exhibits: 
A. Site Visit Photos
B. Site Plan
C. Building Elevations
D. Letter of Intent and Applicant’s Response to Standards
E. Application and Disclosure of Campaign Contributions
F. DWR Sewer Capacity Certification Letter
G. Traffic Impact Study
H. Public Participation Plan and Report
I. Internal and External Agency Review Comments
J. Maps
K. Document presented at the February 4, 2025, Planning Commission Public Hearing

REZ2025-00003 Page 8 of 53 MR



Exhibit A: Site Visit Photos  
 

 

View of property from frontage 
 

 

View of Temple Johnson Road facing west 
 
 

REZ2025-00003 Page 9 of 53 MR



 
 

 

View of Temple Johnson facing east 
 

 

View of adjacent subdivision 
 

  

REZ2025-00003 Page 10 of 53 MR



Exhibit B: Site Plan 
 

[attached] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

REZ2025-00003 Page 11 of 53 MR



REZ2025-00003 Page 12 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Exhibit C: Building Elevations 
 

[attached] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

REZ2025-00003 Page 13 of 53 MR



 Front Elevation

 Front Elevation Front Elevation

 Front Elevation

OAKLEIGH  PARK 

Exterior materials to include brick and/or stone and cementitious sidingREZ2025-00003 Page 14 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



 Typical Right Side Elevation

 Typical Rear Elevation Front Elevation

Typical Left Side Elevation

OAKLEIGH  PARK

Exterior materials to include brick and/or stone and cementitious siding
REZ2025-00003 Page 15 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Exterior materials to include brick and/or stone and cementitious sidingREZ2025-00003 Page 16 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Exterior materials to include brick and/or stone and cementitious sidingREZ2025-00003 Page 17 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Exhibit D: Letter of Intent and Applicant’s Response to Standards 
 

[attached] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

REZ2025-00003 Page 18 of 53 MR



Applicant’s Letter of Intent 
Rezoning Request: R-100 to R-60 

The Applicant requests to rezone the approximately 19.841-acre site from R-100 (Single-Family Residence District) 
to R-60 (Single-Family Residence District) to construct a residential community featuring high-quality single-family detached 
homes. The subject site is located on the south side of Temple Johnson Road between Brushy Fork Road and Rosebud Road. 
The surrounding area is primarily residential in character comprising of a variety of zoning districts. The adjacent subdivision, 
The Estates and Brushy Fork, is a TND subdivision that includes 60-feet and 50-feet wide lots.  

Regarding the Gwinnett County 2045 Comprehensive Plan, the site is within and meets the intent of both the 
Suburban Residential future land use area. The Suburban Residential future land use area specifies R-60 as one of the few 
recommended zoning categories due to the low density and consistency with the existing housing and pattern of future 
residential development in proximity.  

As proposed, the development will have a total of 60 homes, which amounts to a low density of 3.02 units per acre, 
which is less than the adjacent TND subdivision. Overall site access will be provided via one driveway on Temple Johnson 
Road, which will include a deceleration lane to mitigate traffic. In addition to sufficient internal streets and vehicular 
circulation, a network of sidewalks and paths will be provided to offer safe walkability and an opportunity for residents to 
easily enjoy open space.  Featured in the open space is a one-acre community green at the center of the development, which 
has path access on three sides, and includes a covered pavilion as well as the mail kiosk. Additionally, there will be a 20-feet 
wide landscape strip adjacent to the 100-feet wide Georgia Power Easement at the rear of the site, a 25 feet landscape strip 
adjacent to the western property line (Firethorn North Subdivision), and a 10-feet wide landscape strip along the Temple 
Johnson Road frontage.  Other site improvements include parallel parking spaces along the internal street near the mail 
kiosk, and the stormwater pond at the rear of the site.   

To appeal to a variety of homebuyers, the community will offer ranch-style homes, which are limited as newbuilds 
in the County, as well as two-story homes. The homes will feature three to five bedrooms and two and a half to three 
bathrooms, with an overall size in the range of approximately 1,400 square feet to 2,500 square feet. Each will include a 
two-car front entry garage and will be constructed with a variety of high-end materials including brick and/or stone and 
cementitious siding.  

The Applicant submits that the proposed R-60 community is consistent with the surrounding area and looks forward 
to contributing to the necessary supply of high-quality housing in Gwinnett County. Please refer to the attached site plan 
and elevations for more information.  

Based upon the above reasons, the applicant feels that this is a reasonable request and that action contradictory to 
the zoning request will constitute a taking of property in violation of the Just Compensation Clause of the Fifth Amendment 
and the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the Constitution of the United States, and Article 1, Section 
3, Paragraph 1 of the Constitution of Georgia, denying the owner viable use of its land. 

REZ2025-00003 Page 19 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



ZONING STANDARDS 

A. Whether a proposed request will permit a use that is suitable in view of the use and 
development of adjacent and nearby property:

Yes, the proposed development will be consistent with the existing single-family 
subdivisions in proximity. 

B. Whether a proposed request will adversely affect the existing use or usability of 
adjacent or nearby property:

The proposed request will not adversely affect the existing adjacent or nearby properties. 
The proposed development will remain zoned for single-family homes, with a similar 
density and lot sizes to nearby subdivisions. 

C. Whether the property to be affected by a proposed request has a reasonable 
economic use as currently zoned:

Due to the location and shape of the property, there is low demand for what is allowed 
under the current zoning. The applicant submits that the subject property does not have a 
reasonable economic use as currently zoned, and that the rezoning would allow for a use 
more compatible with the surrounding properties. 

D. Whether the proposed request will result in a use which will or could cause an 
excessive or burdensome use of existing streets, transportation facilities, utilities, or 
schools:

The rezoning will not result in excessive use of existing streets, transportation facilities, 
utilities or schools. 

E. Whether the proposed request is in conformity with the policy and intent of the 
Unified Plan and Future Development Map:

The proposed rezoning is in conformity with the intent of the 2045 Unified Plan. The site is 
within the Suburban Residential character area, which encourages R-60. 

F. Whether there are other existing or changing conditions affecting the use and 
development of the property which give supporting grounds for either approval or 
disapproval of the proposed request:

The pattern of residential development in the area has impacted land prices and demand 
for infill. 

REZ2025-00003 Page 20 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Exhibit E: Application and Disclosure of Campaign Contributions 
 

[attached] 
 

REZ2025-00003 Page 21 of 53 MR



Gwinnett County Planning Division 
Rezoning Application 

Last Updated 12/2023 
 

 

3  

REZONING APPLICATION 
 

AN APPLICATION TO AMEND THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF GWINNETT COUNTY, GA. 

0 BAPPLICANT INFORMATION 1B            PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION 

Name:     

Address:     

City:     

State:  ZIP:    

Phone:                 

Email:                                                                    

Name:     

Address:     

City:     

State:  ZIP:    

Phone:                 

Email:                                                                    

Contact Person:  Phone:    

Contact’s Email:    

APPLICANT IS THE: 

        Owner’s Agent              Property Owner                  Contract Purchaser 

 Current Zoning District(s):                  Requested Zoning District:                     

Parcel Number(s):    Acreage:                                                          

Property Address(es):          

Proposed Development:        

Variance(s):                                                                              Waiver(s):                                              

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 

No. of Dwelling Units:    

Dwelling Unit Sq. Ft.:    

Density:     

Floor Area Ratio (LRR, MRR, HRR):    

NON-RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT 

No. of Buildings:                                                

Total Building Sq. Ft.:                                        

Floor Area Ratio:                                                

MIXED-USE DEVELOPMENT 

No. of Dwelling Units:    Dwelling Unit Sq. Ft.:                                              

Total Non-Residential Sq. Ft.:                            Floor Area Ratio:                                             

PO BOX 1891

Loganville 

GA 30052

Timothy A Shumaker 

PO BOX 1891

Loganville 

GA 30052

470.202.9321  470.202.9321  

tlasser@lja.com tlasser@lja.com

Tyler Lasser 470.202.9321  

tlasser@lja.com

R-100 R-60

5099 023

Single-Family Subdivision 

n/a n/a

19.841

1180 TEMPLE JOHNSON ROAD

60

3.02

min. 1,400

Timothy A Shumaker c/o LJA Engineering

REZ2025-00003 Page 22 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



REZ2025-00003 Page 23 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



REZ2025-00003 Page 24 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



REZ2025-00003 Page 25 of 53 MR



Exhibit F: DWR Sewer Capacity Certification Letter 
 

[attached] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

REZ2025-00003 Page 26 of 53 MR



REZ2025-00003 Page 27 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



REZ2025-00003 Page 28 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Exhibit G: Traffic Impact Study 
 

[attached] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REZ2025-00003 Page 29 of 53 MR



REZ2025-00003 Page 30 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Temple Johnson Road Residential Development Traffic Impact Study October 2024

II

Executive Summary

The purpose of this study is to evaluate the potential traffic impacts of the proposed Temple Johnson Road
residential development.  The site is located in Gwinnett County along the south side of Temple Johnson 
Road, between Brushy Fork Road and Rosebud Road. Based on the zoning plan (dated 08/30/2024), the +/-
19.84-acre development proposes a total of 60 single-family homes. The zoning plan (see Appendix B) for 
the development illustrates the site layout and the proposed driveway location.

Temple Johnson Road is a two-lane roadway, with a posted 45-mph speed limit, and is classified as a major 
collector by Gwinnett County DOT in the area of the proposed development. 

For the purposes of the traffic study, the analysis included the expected completion (build-out) of the 
development by year 2028. This study performed an analysis of future traffic conditions. The future 
conditions analysis was performed for the year 2028 Build Conditions (with the Temple Johnson Road
residential development). 

) Trip 
Generation Manual, Eleventh Edition. For the purposes of the traffic study, the analysis included up to 60 
residential units to be built by the expected completion year of 2028. The most applicable ITE land use (LU) 
code was LU 210 (Single-Family Detached Housing). The estimated total project volumes are 631 vehicles 
per day (315 entering and 315 exiting), 47 vehicles during the AM peak hour (12 entering and 35 exiting) 
and 61 vehicles during the PM peak hour (39 entering and 22 exiting).

The Gwinnett County DOT traffic impact study guidelines, version 1 (June 30, 2023) was utilized. Based on 
the proposed development project trips, the traffic study scope included Level 2 elements. Based on 
correspondence with Gwinnett County staff, the traffic impact study network consisted of the one proposed 
site driveway location.

In the future year 2028 Build Conditions (with the Temple Johnson Road development traffic volumes), the 
results of the traffic analysis indicate the one site driveway, operating with side-street stop-control, is
expected to operate acceptable levels of service during the AM and PM peak hours. 

The traffic impact study identified the following geometric improvements needed to accommodate the 
proposed development. The traffic study included a review of the need for turn lanes at site driveway based 
on Gwinnett County criteria. Based on estimated traffic volumes in the year 2028 Build Year conditions, and 
the Gwinnett County requirements, the following driveway geometric recommendations are provided:

Temple Johnson Road at Proposed Driveway #1 
o Provide a full-movement driveway; driveway to be stop-control
o Provide one entry lane and one exit lane
o Provide an eastbound right-turn deceleration lane along Temple Johnson Road

REZ2025-00003 Page 31 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Temple Johnson Road Residential Development Traffic Impact Study October 2024

III

Table of Contents

1. Existing Conditions 1

1.1 Site Conditions 1

1.2 Roadway Conditions 1

1.3 Traffic Volumes 1

2. Future Conditions 2

2.1 Future No-Build Traffic Volumes 2

2.2 Future Roadway Conditions 2

3. Proposed Development Traffic 3

3.1 Trip Generation 3

3.2 Trip Distribution and Assignment 3

3.3 Future Build Traffic Volumes 3

4. Capacity Analysis 4

4.1 Future Build Conditions Capacity Analysis 5

4.2 Turn Lane Analysis at Site Driveway 5

5. Recommendations 6

5.1 Recommended Driveway Geometry 6

REZ2025-00003 Page 32 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Temple Johnson Road Residential Development Traffic Impact Study October 2024

IV

Tables

Table 1: Proposed Site Trip Generation.......................................................................................................................................3
Table 2: Level of Service Criteria.....................................................................................................................................................4
Table 3: Build (Year 2028) Level of Service.................................................................................................................................5

Appendix

A: Figures 

Figure 1 Location Map

Figure 2 Aerial & Access Locations

Figure 3 Existing Traffic Conditions

Figure 4 Project Trip Distribution

Figure 5 Future Build (Year 2028) Conditions

B: Concept Plan

C: Traffic Count Data

D: GDOT Traffic Data

E: Intersection Volume Development

F: Capacity Analysis Reports

REZ2025-00003 Page 33 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Temple Johnson Road Residential Development Traffic Impact Study October 2024

1

1. Existing Conditions

1.1 Site Conditions

The proposed development is located on developed property. Figure 1 provides a general location map. 
Figure 2 is an aerial that shows the site location and the proposed site driveway (Figures included in 
Appendix A). Access to the property is proposed to be provided at one location off Temple Johnson Road
(The concept plan is included in Appendix B). Nearby land uses are residential. 

1.2 Roadway Conditions

Temple Johnson Road travels in the east-west direction in the vicinity of the proposed development. It is a 
two-lane facility, that is functionally classified as a major collector by Gwinnett County DOT with a posted 
speed limit of 45 mph. The roadway has urban shoulders with curb and gutter and sidewalk on both sides
of the roadway.

Gwinnett County Transit does not provide bus routes near the development site. 

1.3 Traffic Volumes

Traffic counts were collected on Thursday, September 12, 2024, for use in the traffic analysis. The traffic 
data collected included:

24-hr bi-directional average daily traffic (ADT) count on Temple Johnson Road, at the site 
driveway location and the weekday volume was 1,282 vehicles.

Historical traffic volume data available from the GDOT TADA source were utilized to inform the annual 
growth factor. The three locations are indicated in Appendix D. The three locations are:

GDOT Count Station #135-0516 located on Rosebud Road, north of Temple Johnson Road
GDOT Count Station #135-8063 located on Temple Johnson Road, west of Rosebud Road
GDOT Count Station #135-8538 located on Old Loganville Road, south of Temple Johnson Road

Figure 3 (in Appendix A) illustrates the existing 2024 traffic volumes. The 2024 traffic volumes are 
indicated in the Intersection Volume Development tables included in the Appendix E.

REZ2025-00003 Page 34 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Temple Johnson Road Residential Development Traffic Impact Study October 2024

2

2. Future Conditions

2.1 Future No-Build Traffic Volumes

Future No-Build traffic volumes were developed by reviewing the historical traffic volumes roadways 
within the vicinity of the project and historic population growth in the county. Three GDOT count stations 
in the area were reviewed. The annual historic compound growth rate averaged 2.8% between the three
count stations. The calculations are included in Appendix D. Gwinnett
was most recently reported as 1.74% per year in 2020. 
developed population projections indicate an estimated growth of 1.05% by 2028 in Gwinnett County.

Considering this data, a 2.5% per year growth rate to account for background traffic volume growth was 
used in the traffic study. For the purposes of this study the proposed development is expected to be 
completed and opened by 2028. A 2.5% per year growth rate was applied to the 2024 existing volumes to 
calculate year 2028 No-Build traffic volumes. The 2028 No-Build traffic volumes are indicated in the 
Intersection Volume Development tables included in Appendix E.

2.2 Future Roadway Conditions

A review of Gwinnett County and Georgia DOT planned and programmed transportation projects was 
performed. There are no planned or programmed transportation projects in the nearby vicinity.

REZ2025-00003 Page 35 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Temple Johnson Road Residential Development Traffic Impact Study October 2024

3

3. Proposed Development Traffic

Project traffic was calculated for the proposed development.  Project traffic is defined as the vehicular trips 
expected to be generated by the development and distributed over the roadway network.

3.1 Trip Generation

Generation Manual, Eleventh Edition. The development proposes 60 single-family homes. The most 
applicable ITE land use (LU) code is LU 210 (Single-Family Detached Housing). Due to the development 
type, pass-by reductions and internal capture reductions were not included for the traffic analysis. Table 1
below summarizes the trips expected daily, during the AM peak hour and during the PM peak hour for the 
development.

Table 1: Proposed Site Trip Generation

Land Use (ITE Code) Units
Daily Trips AM Peak Hour PM Peak Hour

Two-Way Total Enter Exit Total Enter Exit Total

Single-Family Detached
Housing (215)

60 631 12 35 47 39 22 61

Driveway Totals 631 12 35 47 39 22 61

3.2 Trip Distribution and Assignment

An overall trip distribution and assignment of project trips was based on existing traffic patterns and a 
review of land uses and the street network in the area. This information was used to apply the project 
traffic volumes at the study intersections and development driveway. 

The directional distribution for the proposed development is estimated to be:

o 60% to/from the west along Temple Johnson Road
o 40% to/from the east along Temple Johnson Road

Project trip distribution is illustrated in Figure 4 in Appendix A.

3.3 Future Build Traffic Volumes

The 2028 future Build traffic volumes were calculated by adding the proposed development (Temple 
Johnson Road) traffic volumes to the projected year 2028 No-Build traffic volumes. Figure 5 (in Appendix 
A) illustrates the year 2028 Build traffic volumes.

REZ2025-00003 Page 36 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Temple Johnson Road Residential Development Traffic Impact Study October 2024

4

4. Capacity Analysis

Capacity analysis was performed at the study intersections for the weekday AM and PM peak hours.  
Intersection Level of Service (LOS) was calculated based on the methodologies contained in the Highway 
Capacity Manual, 6th Edition.  The Synchro Studio software, which utilizes the HCM 6th Edition 
methodology, was utilized to perform the analyses.  

Capacity is defined as the maximum number of vehicles that can pass over a particular road segment or 
through a particular intersection within a specified period under prevailing roadway, traffic, and control 
conditions.  Level of service (LOS) is used to describe the operating characteristics of a road segment or 
intersection in relation to its capacity.  LOS is defined as a qualitative measure that describes operational 

of service, LOS A 
through LOS F.  Level of service A indicates excellent operations with little delay to motorists, while level 
of service F indicates extremely long delay. 

Level of service for unsignalized intersections is calculated for the average control delay incurred for vehicles 
on the stop control approach, compared to the average control delay per vehicle for all approaches at a 
signalized intersection. Control delay for vehicles include initial deceleration delay, queue move-up time, 
stopped delay, and final acceleration delay. Table 2 below indicates the relationship between delay and 
LOS for signalized and unsignalized intersections, respectively. Level-of-service 
to be the limit of acceptable delay.

Several factors affect the controlled delay for unsignalized intersections, including the availability of gaps in 
the cross-street traffic, and acceptable gap time to make the movement from the stop position. For stop-
control intersections, LOS E and F exist when there are insufficient gaps in traffic, resulting in long delays. 
Low level of service for stop-control approaches are not uncommon at major cross-streets.

Table 2: Level of Service Criteria

Level of Service
Average Control Delay Per Vehicle (sec)

Signalized Intersection Unsignalized Intersection

A

B

C

D

E

F >80 >50

REZ2025-00003 Page 37 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Temple Johnson Road Residential Development Traffic Impact Study October 2024

5

4.1 Future Build Conditions Capacity Analysis

Capacity analysis was performed for the year 2028 Future Build Conditions and includes the No-Build traffic 
volumes plus the Temple Johnson Road development volumes. The Build traffic conditions and volumes are 
illustrated in Figure 5. Table 3 summarizes the results of the capacity analysis.

Table 3: Build (Year 2028) Level of Service

Intersection Intersection 
Control

Approach
AM Peak 

Hour 
LOS (Delay*)

PM Peak 
Hour 

LOS (Delay*)
1. Temple Johnson Road at Proposed 

Driveway
Stop-Control NB A (9) A (9)

*Average vehicle delay in seconds

By the 2028 Future Build Conditions, the proposed driveway is expected to operate at acceptable levels of 
service during the AM and PM peak hours.

4.2 Turn Lane Analysis at Site Driveway

Gwinnett County has criteria for installation of right-turn lanes as set forth by the Unified Development 
Ordinance (UDO) for County-maintained roads. The County UDO states that right-turn deceleration lanes 
shall be provided at each project driveway or subdivision street entrance that is provided street access to a 
Minor Collector Street or major Thoroughfare. Since Temple Johnson Road is classified as a major collector,
the proposed driveway would require a right-turn deceleration lane.

Additionally, Gwinnett County has minimum requirements for left-turn deceleration lanes as set forth by 
Criteria and Guidelines for Left Turn Lanes. Since Temple Johnson Road is a 2-lane route, has a 

posted speed limit of 45 mph, and has average daily traffic (ADT) less than 6,000 vehicles per day, the left-
turn criteria states that if there will be more than 75 lots at proposed driveways, then left-turn deceleration 
lanes would be warranted. Based upon the most recent concept plan, the 75-lot threshold is NOT met at
the proposed driveway; therefore, a left-turn deceleration lane is NOT required at the proposed driveway. 

REZ2025-00003 Page 38 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Temple Johnson Road Residential Development Traffic Impact Study October 2024

6

5. Recommendations

Recommendations for access for the proposed Temple Johnson Road residential development are based 
on existing conditions, the proposed development use, and expected traffic volumes. The need for 
dedicated turn lanes at the proposed development driveway and appropriate traffic control (i.e. stop 
control) were based on Gwinnett County criteria. Recommendations were based on transportation 
industry standards and engineering judgment. Specifics of the driveway design will need to follow 
Gwinnett County requirements for the driveway along Temple Johnson Road.

5.1 Recommended Driveway Geometry

Based on estimated traffic volumes in the year 2028 Build year conditions the following driveway 
geometric recommendations are provided:

Temple Johnson Road at Proposed Driveway #1 
o Provide a full-movement driveway; driveway to be stop-control
o Provide one entry lane and one exit lane
o Provide an eastbound right-turn deceleration lane along Temple Johnson Road

REZ2025-00003 Page 39 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Exhibit H: Public Participation Plan and Report 
 

[attached] 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REZ2025-00003 Page 40 of 53 MR



3 

Public Participation Plan 

1. Who do you intend to contact in addition to property owners within 1,000 feet of the
site, if any?

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

2. Where do you plan to host the Public Participation Meeting? Ensure that the meeting
is held in person at a convenient location for interested parties.

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

3. What date and time do you plan to host the Public Participation Meeting? Ensure that
the meeting is held at a convenient time for interested parties, e.g. not during typical
work hours on weekdays.

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

4. What is your method for providing opportunities for discussion with interested parties
at the Public Participation Meeting?

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

2428 Main St E, Snellville, GA 30078 - Snellville Community Church 

November 20th at 6pm 

There will be a brief presentation followed by a Q&A for the attendees. 

District Planning Commissioners will be invited via email. 

REZ2025-00003 Page 41 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



4 

Public Participation Report 

1. List all groups that you notified of the requested application. Include a copy of the
notification package and stamped Postal Service Form 3877 (attached) with itemized
name and address of each addressee.

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

2. Provide the date, time, and location of all meeting(s) that the applicant and/or
representative attended to discuss an application with interested parties.

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

3. Provide the number of people who participated in the meeting(s). Include the sign-in
sheet(s) with meeting date, time, location, and attendee names.

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

4. What issues and concerns were expressed by attendees at the meeting(s)?

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________________________

5. What are the applicant’s responses to the issues and concerns that were expressed
at the meetings? What changes to the development will be made?

   _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

   _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

All property owners within 1000 feet had been notified for the meeting, as well as the 
property owners. 

Snellville Community Church - 2428 Main St E, Snellville, GA 30078
November 20th at 6pm

6 people attended from the public 

The primary concerns was regarding stormwater runoff and what will happen with 
the existing ponds on site.

The ponds on site are ornimental, and they did not serve a purpose for stormwater management. 
A new designed pond will be provided to reduce runoff to improve the surrounding area. 

REZ2025-00003 Page 42 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



Exhibit I: Internal and External Agency Review Comments 
 

[attached] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REZ2025-00003 Page 43 of 53 MR



 

Department of Planning and Development 

TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 Note: Attach additional pages, if needed  
Revised 7/26/2021 

 

 

 

  

TRC Meeting Date:  January 6, 2025  
Department/Agency Name:  Transportation  
Reviewer Name:  Brent Hodges 
Reviewer Title:  Construction Manager 2  
Reviewer Email Address:  Brent.Hodges@gwinnettcounty.com   
Case Number:  REZ2025-00003   
Case Address:  1180 Temple Johnson Road   
                                      Comments:        X      YES      NO  

1  Temple Johnson Road is a major collector. The Average Daily Traffic Volume (ADT) is 2,915. 

2  The nearest Ride Gwinnett facility is located 5.1 miles away at E. Main Street and Wisteria 
Drive. 

3  Traffic Calming shall be required along any internal street that exceeds 500’ without a 
control point. 

4     

5     

6    

7    

   Recommended Zoning Conditions:           YES  X  NO  

1     

2     

3     

4     

5    

6    

REZ2025-00003 Page 44 of 53 MR



 

Department of Planning and Development 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 

 

 

 

 Note: Attach additional pages, if needed  
Revised 7/26/2021 

 

 

TRC Meeting Date:  

Department/Agency Name: DWR 

Reviewer Name: Mike Pappas 

Reviewer Title: GIS Planning Manager 

Reviewer Email Address: Michael.pappas@gwinnettcounty.com  

Case Number:  REZ2025-00003 

Case Address:  1180 Temple Johnson Rd 

                                     Comments:       X     YES    NO 
1  Water: The development may connect to existing 12-inch water main on the northern right-of-way of 

Temple Johnson Road. A jack-and-bore will be required. The existing 48-inch water transmission main 
along Temple Johnson Road must be avoided during all phases of construction, including the construction 
of deceleration lanes. 

2  Sewer: Sewer Capacity Certification C2024-164-07 was approved in September 2024 for 60 single-family 
homes. The proposed development plans to connect to an existing 8-inch gravity sewer located on parcel 
5099 002. The final plat for the adjacent Estates at Brushy Fork development indicate an easement exists 
to tie-in to manhole FID 3969788. 

3   

4   

5   

6  

7  

  Recommended Zoning Conditions:         YES X NO 
1   

2   

3   

4   

5  

6  

7  

REZ2025-00003 Page 45 of 53 MR

mailto:Michael.pappas@gwinnettcounty.com




Residential Rezoning Impact on Local Schools

Proposed Zoning 

Approximate Student Projections

School Forecast Capacity +/- Cap. Forecast Capacity +/- Cap. Forecast Capacity +/- Cap. from Proposed Developments

South Gwinnett High School 2,463 2,750 -287 2,488 2,750 -262 2,455 2,750 -295 14

REZ2025-00003 Grace Snell Middle School 1,274 1,200 74 1,261 1,200 61 1,286 1,200 86 10

Magill Elementary School 1,351 1,525 -174 1,392 1,525 -133 1,433 1,525 -92 18

2024-25 2025-26 2026-27

Prepared for Gwinnett County BOC, February, 2025

REZ2025-00003 Page 47 of 53 MR



Exhibit J: Maps 

[attached] 

REZ2025-00003 Page 48 of 53 MR



BRUSHY FORK RD

R
O

S
E

B
U

D
 R

D LIN
S

TE
A

D
 C

T

SOUTHFIELD CT

P
A

T
R

IC
K

M
A

N
O

R
 D

R

B
U

R
N

IN
G

B
U

S
H

 LN

T
H

R
U

S
H

C
T

TEMPLE JOHNSON
RD

KINGSTON HILL DR

ULSTER CT

SHAMROCK HILL CIR

BURNING BUSHDR

Gwinnett County GIS¯ 0 250125

Feet

REZ2025-00003

Created: December 9, 2024

Path: Q:\Planning_and_Development\current planning\monthly agenda maps\2025 agenda maps\02-February\February 2025 Monthly Agenda\February 2025 Monthly Agenda.aprx User: zjvill



¹º

BRUSHY FORK RD

B
R

U

SHY

FO
R

K

RD

R
O

SE
BU

D
R

D

TEMPLE JOHNSON RD
LIN

S
TE

A
D

 C
T LILLY BROOK DR

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
 R

D

LILLY BROO
K

D
R

C
H

O
SE

N
B

LV
D

SOUTHFIELD CT
STEPP CT

WOODRUFF
CREEK WAY

B
O

B

W
H

ITE
 LN

S
T

E
P

H
E

N
S

C
R

E
E

K
 C

T

N
E

W
B

U
R

Y

P
LA

C
E

 D
R

P
A

T
R

IC
K

M
A

N
O

R
 D

R

STEPHENS

POND PL

B
R

U
S

H
Y

W
O

O
D

C
T

ASTE
R

FA
LL

 R
D

FR
ANKIE

W
AD

E
LN FE

LD
M

A
N

C
H

S

S
T

E
P

H
E

N
S

C
R

E
E

K
 P

L

S WEET IRIS
CIR

SUMMIT

CREEK WAY

W
O

O
D

R
U

FF

C
R

E
E

K
 LN KENDRICK CIR

GARDEN

WOODS CT

B
U

R
N

IN
G

B
U

S
H

 LN

T
H

R
U

S
H

C
T

R
IV

ER
O

AK L
N

STEPHENS
R

D

GARDEN

MEADOWS CIR

C
O

M
P

TO
N

W
O

O
D

S
 LN

R
A

M
S

AY

PA
S

S

R
O

LLIN
G

M
E

A
D

O
W

S
W

AY

STE
P

H
E

N
S

PO
N

D
V

W

ROSEPOINTEDR

R
O

ZE
N

A W
AY

R
AN

G
E

W
AY

SOLEIL
SUMMIT BLVD

ROLLING MEADOWS DR

CLASSIC DR

R
O

SE
P

O
IN

T
E

DR

W
IC

K
LE

Y
 LN

E LAUNTA ST

BURNING BUSH DR

THORMANDY WAY

NANDINA LN

KINGSTON HILL DR

BR
U

SHY WOOD DR

ULSTER CT

TIELMAN WAY

TIELM
A

N
S

T

SUM
M

IT

TURF LN

S
U

M
M

IT
C

R
E

E
K

LN

STEPHENS POND VW

S

HAM
RO

CK HIL L CIR

BRUSHY WOOD DR

BRUSHY
FOR

K
R

D

SOBECK WAY

COMPTON WOODS DR

BURNING BUSH DRR100

LI

R75

R100CSO

R100

R100

RO

RO

RO

OP

R100

RS30

RS30

R100

OSC

OSC

R75

R75

R100

R100

R100

R100

R100

R100

R100

R100
R100

R100

CI

RS30
LM

TND

SNELLVILLE

¯ 0 600300

Feet

REZ2025-00003

Created: December 9, 2024 SUBJECT SITE AND SURROUNDING ZONING
Path: Q:\Planning_and_Development\current planning\monthly agenda maps\2025 agenda maps\02-February\February 2025 Monthly Agenda\February 2025 Monthly Agenda.aprx User: zjvill

R100



¹º

BRUSHY FORK RD

R
O

SE
BU

D
R

D

TEMPLE JOHNSON RD

LIN
S

TE
A

D
 C

T

LILLY BROOK DR

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
 R

D

LILLY
B

R
O

O
K

D
R

C
H

O
SE

N
B

LV
D

SOUTHFIELD CT

S
W

E
E

T IR
IS

 C
IR

SUMMIT
CREEK WAY

KENDRICK CIR

S
TE

P
H

E
N

S
R

D

R
O

LLIN
G

 M
E

A
D

O
W

S
 W

AY

R
O

ZE
N

A W
AY

R
AN

G
E

W
AY

SOLEIL
SUMMIT BLVD

ROLLING MEADOWS DR

CLASSIC DR

R
O

S
E

 P
O

IN
T

E
 D

R

W
IC

K
LE

Y
 LN

THORMANDY WAY

NANDINA LN

KINGSTON HILL DR

ULSTER CT
TIELMAN WAY

TIELM
A

N
S

T

SUM
M

IT

TURF LN

S
U

M
M

IT
C

R
E

E
K

LN

BRUSHY
W

O
O

D
D

R

BRUSHY
FORK

RD

SOBECK WAY

COMPTON W
OODS DR

BURNING BUSH DR

SNELLVILLE

Suburban
Residential

Suburban
Residential

Suburban
Residential

Suburban
Residential

Suburban
Residential

Suburban
Residential

Suburban
Residential

Suburban
Residential

Suburban
Residential

Suburban
Residential

Suburban
Residential

Traditional

Traditional

Traditional+

Traditional+

Grace
Snell MS

¯ 0 600300

Feet

REZ2025-00003

Created: December 9, 2024 2045 UNIFIED PLAN FUTURE DEVELOPMENT CLASSIFICATION
Path: Q:\Planning_and_Development\current planning\monthly agenda maps\2025 agenda maps\02-February\February 2025 Monthly Agenda\February 2025 Monthly Agenda.aprx User: zjvill



Exhibit K: Document presented at the February 4, 2025, Planning Commission Public Hearing 

[attached] 

REZ2025-00003 Page 52 of 53 MR



REZ2025-00003 Page 53 of 53 MR

Marc Rosengart
Received



      

 

 

   

    
 

 

   

   

 

   

 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

    

  

Gwinnett County Board of Commissioners Agenda Request 
GCID # Group With GCID #: 

Grants Public Hearing 

Department: Date Submitted: 

Working Session: Business Session: Public Hearing: 

Submitted By: Multiple Depts? 

Agenda Type 

Item of Business: Locked by Purchasing 

Authorization: 

Financial Action 

County Clerk Use Only 

Attachments 

Chairwoman's Signature? 

Staff Recommendation 

Department Head 

Attorney 

Agenda Purpose Only 

Director's Initials 

Finance 
Comments 

Working Session 

Motion 

PH was Held? 

Action 

2nd by 

Tabled Vote 

FinDir's Initials 

Budgeted Fund Name Current Balance Requested Allocation 

Budget Adjust Grand Jury 

BAC Action: 

20250207

Planning & Development 02/04/2025

tmdial

Ratification

Plat Ratification Report and Map

Approval

jjleitch (2/12/2025)

jennyscarter (2/14/2025)

*No budget impact.

New Item

No Action Taken

No

of Plat approvals for January 1, 2025 through January 31, 2025.

No

raroyal (2/14/2025)

bjalexzulian 
(2/14/2025)

N/A * N/A

02/25/2025



 
COMMISSION DIST: 2 TOTAL ACRES : 29.88 DEVELOPER DESIGNER 

PARCEL # : 4336 189 DENSITY : 4.05 ERIC CHAFIN 
CLAYTON PROPERTIES GROUP, INC. 
5230 BELLE WOOD COURT, 
SUITE A 
BUFORD, GA 30518 

NEY F. AYALA 
PLANNERS AND ENGINEERS COLLABORATIVE 
350 RESEARCH COURT 
PEACHTREE CORNERS, GA 30092 

STATUS : Revision Authorized NO. OF LOTS : 121 

RECEIVED ON : 10/17/2023 

ISSUED ON : 1/8/2025 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION : SINGLE FAMILY SUBDIVISION, TND PER RZR2020-00032, 121 LOTS, 29.88 ACRES, 6.91 ACRES OPEN SPACE, SEWER 
 

CASE NUMBER : PLAT2024-00080 ADDRESS : AZALEA DR (1800 BLOCK), PROJECT : AZALEA SQUARE PHASE 1 
LAWRENCEVILLE, GA 30043 

COMMISSION DIST: 4 TOTAL ACRES : 15.17 DEVELOPER DESIGNER 

PARCEL # : 7091 034 DENSITY : 6.93 SCOTT URBIZO 
CENTURY COMMUNITIES 
3091 GOVERNORS LAKE DRIVE 
SUITE 200 
NORCROSS, GA 30071 

NEY F. AYALA 
PLANNERS & ENGINEERS COLLABORATIVE 
350 RESEARCH COURT 
PEACHTREE CORNERS, GA 

STATUS : Revision Authorized NO. OF LOTS : 92   

RECEIVED ON : 2/22/2024     

ISSUED ON : 1/31/2025     

PROJECT DESCRIPTION : SINGLE FAMILY SUBDIVISION, PHASE 1, R-TH PER RZM2021-00003, 92 LOTS, 15.17 ACRES, 5.98 ACRES OPEN SPACE, SEWER 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CASE NUMBER : PLAT2023-00306 ADDRESS : LEE ROAD (3600 BLOCK), 
SNELLVILLE, GA 30039 

PROJECT : CROFTON PLACE 

Gwinnett County 
Department of Planning & Development 

Plat Ratification Report 

From 1/1/2025 to 1/31/2025 

Final Plats Approved 



CASE NUMBER : PLAT2024-00361 ADDRESS : CENTERVILLE 
(3600 BLOCK), 

ROSEBUD RD PROJECT : 
SNELLVILLE, GA 

FORD, TERRY (XPL) 

   30039   

COMMISSION DIST: 2 TOTAL ACRES : 4.03 DEVELOPER DESIGNER 

PARCEL # : 6014 002B DENSITY : N/A TERRY FORD 
3688 CENTERVILLE-ROSEBUD ROAD 
SNELLVILLE, GA 30039 

TRAVIS N. PRUITT, JR. 
TRAVIS PRUITT & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
4317 PARK DRIVE 
NORCROSS, GA 30093 

STATUS : Plans Authorized NO. OF LOTS : 2   

RECEIVED ON : 9/16/2024     

ISSUED ON : 1/3/2025     

PROJECT DESCRIPTION : FORD, TERRY (XPL), R-100, 2 LOTS, 4.03 ACRES, SEWER 

CASE NUMBER : PLAT2024-00423 ADDRESS : KELLY GLEN 
DACULA, GA 

CT (3200 BLOCK), 
30019 

PROJECT : DWELL CO, LLC. (XPL) 

COMMISSION DIST: 3 TOTAL ACRES : 7.14 DEVELOPER  DESIGNER 

PARCEL # : 5325 045 DENSITY : N/A ANGELA UTAYEV 
DWELL CO, LLC. 
2567 KILGORE COURT 
BUFORD, GA 30519 

 ZACHARY R. GARRETT 
GARRETT LAND SURVEYING, LLC. 
102 ETHRIDGE WAY 
HARTWELL, GA 30643 

STATUS : Plans Authorized NO. OF LOTS : 3    

RECEIVED ON : 10/22/2024      

ISSUED ON : 1/13/2025      

PROJECT DESCRIPTION : DWELL CO, LLC. (XPL), RA-200, 3 LOTS, 7.14 ACRES, SEPTIC 
 

CASE NUMBER : PLAT2024-00439 ADDRESS : RIDGEDALE DR (2200 BLOCK), PROJECT : 
GRAYSON, GA 30017 

MOTRESCU, ADELIA (XPL) 

COMMISSION DIST: 3 TOTAL ACRES : 0.85 DEVELOPER DESIGNER 

PARCEL # : 5071 039 DENSITY : N/A ADELIA MOTRESCU 
1525 HILL CROSSING COURT 
GRAYSON, GA 30017 

JEREMY W. WITHERINGTON 
GRANT SHEPHERD & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
735 LONGLEAF BOULEVARD 
LAWRENCEVILLE, GA 30046 

STATUS : Plans Authorized NO. OF LOTS : 1  

RECEIVED ON : 10/31/2024    

ISSUED ON : 1/3/2025    

PROJECT DESCRIPTION : MOTRESCU, ADELIA (XPL) R-100, 1 LOT, 0.85 ACRES, SEPTIC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CASE NUMBER : PLAT2024-00468 ADDRESS : E MORNINGSIDE DR (700 PROJECT : 
BLOCK), LAWRENCEVILLE, GA 
30043 

DOLAN, AURELIAN & ANTHONY WILLIAM SACA 
(XPL) 

COMMISSION DIST: 4 TOTAL ACRES : 0.99 DEVELOPER DESIGNER 

PARCEL # : 7012A037 DENSITY : N/A AURELIAN DOLAN 
797 E MORNINGSIDE DRIVE 
LAWRENCEVILLE, GA 30043 

GERALD H. BERNHARD 
MANSUR ENGINEERING, INC. 
1810 PEACHTREE INDUSTRIAL BOULEVARD 
DULUTH, GA 30097 

STATUS : Plans Authorized NO. OF LOTS : 2  

RECEIVED ON : 11/20/2024    

ISSUED ON : 1/2/2025   
 

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION : DOLAN, AURELIAN & ANTHONY WILLIAM SACA (XPL), R-100, 2 LOTS, 0.99 ACRES, SEWER 

 
CASE NUMBER : PLAT2024-00482 ADDRESS : HIRAM DAVIS RD (1000 BLOCK), PROJECT : 

LAWRENCEVILLE, GA 30045 
GARCIA, EDWIN (XPL) 

COMMISSION DIST: 3 TOTAL ACRES : 5.01 DEVELOPER DESIGNER 

PARCEL # : 5203 002 DENSITY : N/A EDWIN GARCIA 
1096 HIRAM DAVIS ROAD 
LAWRENCEVILLE, GA 30045 

LLOYD C. MCNALLY, JR. 
MCNALLY & PATRICK 
1505 HIGHWAY 29 SOUTH 
LAWRENCEVILLE, GA 30044 

STATUS : Plans Authorized NO. OF LOTS : 2  

RECEIVED ON : 12/2/2024    

ISSUED ON : 1/30/2025    

PROJECT DESCRIPTION : GARCIA, EDWIN (XPL), R-100 PER REZ1975-00022, 2 LOTS, 5.01 ACRES, SEPTIC 
 

 

 

 

TOTAL FOR : Plat NO. OF CASES : 7  NO. OF LOTS : 223 TOTAL ACRES : 63.07 

TOTAL ACRES : 63.07 NO. OF LOTS : 223 NO. OF CASES :  GRAND TOTALS 



DISTRICT
2

DISTRICT
4

DISTRICT
1

DISTRICT
3

B
uford

D
r

S
at

elli
te

Blv
d

Pe
ac

htre
e In

du
st

ria
l B

lvd

Beaver R u in
Rd

Duluth Hwy

Breckinrid

ge
B

lv
d

Buf
or

d 
Hwy

Ronald Reagan
P

kwy

Law
ren

ceville

Suwanee
R

d

Dacula
Rd

Braselton Hwy

S
ug

ar
loaf P

kw
y

Athens Hwy

Old Norcross Rd

La

wrenceville Hwy

O
ak R

d

Cruse Rd

N
ew

H
op

e
R

d

Fiv
e Fo

rks
Trickum

Rd

S
ce

ni
c 

H
w

y

Hurricane Sho
al

s

Rd

Thompson Mill Rd

Annistown Rd

P
leasant H

ill Rd

Grave l SpringsRd

Sto
ne

Mountain Hwy

R
os

eb
ud

R
d

Arc a do
Rd

S
uw

anee
D

am
R

d

Azale
a

D
r

Chandler Rd

Old Peachtree
R

d

Killian Hill Rd

H
olcomb Bridge Rd

Spalding D r

Loganville
H

w
y

R
oc

k
Sp

r in
gs

Rd
C

o
llin

s

H
ill Rd

Fence Rd

W
inder Hwy

Te
m

ple
Joh nson Rd

HamiltonM
ill

R

d

Harbins Rd

R
o

ckbridge
R

d

Old Loganville Rd

Jim
m

y
C

arter
B

lvd

Au
burn

Rd

H ogMountai n

R
d

Buford DamRd

Old Fountain Rd

Lenora
C

hurch
R

d

Brooks Rd

Ozora Rd

In

dian Shoa
ls

R
d

Pea
ch

tr
ee

P
kw

y

M
ink

Livsey
R

d

Lee Rd

DrowningCreek
R

d

L
u

k
e

E
d

wards Rd

E
w

in
g

C
hapel R

d

Callie Still Rd

¬«316

§̈¦985

§̈¦85

LAWRENCEVILLE

MULBERRY

PEACHTREE CORNERS

BRASELTON

BERKELEY LAKE

DULUTH

DACULA

NORCROSS

GRAYSON

SNELLVILLE

SUGAR HILL

REST HAVEN

AUBURN

BUFORD

LILBURN

LOGANVILLE

SUWANEE

AZALEA SQUARE PHASE 1
(PLAT2024-00080)

CROFTON PLACE
(PLAT2023-00306)

EDWIN GARCIA
(PLAT2024-00482) DWELL CO, LLC

(PLAT2024-00423)

TERRY FORD
(PLAT2024-00361)

ADELIA MOTRESCU
(PLAT2024-00439)

AURELIAN DOLAN & ANTHONY WILLIAM SACA
(PLAT2024-00468)

Final Plats and Exemption Plats
Approved in January 2025
by Planning and Development

FINAL PLAT

EXEMPTION PLAT

´

0 4 82 Miles

Path: Q:\Planning_and_Development\Monthly_Plat_Ratifications\MXDs\2024\ARC_PRO_Monthly_Plat_Ratifications\ARC_PRO_Monthly_Plat_Ratifications.aprx


	Presentations
	Page 1
	Page 2
	20250242
	20250179
	20250205
	20250206
	20250207



